# RINGWOOD AND DISTRICT CRICKET ASSOCIATION INC.

No. A0110509M ABN 33 869 448 061



# 2020/2021 ANNUAL REPORT

Presented to Club Delegates at the Annual General Meeting held on Monday 16th August 2021

### RINGWOOD AND DISTRICT CRICKET ASSOCIATION INC OFFICE BEARERS – SEASON 2020/21

#### **Board of Management**

President of RDCA (Chairman) Michael Finn **Administration Manager Timothy Court Finance Manager** Graeme Seymour Pat Meehan **Senior Representative Junior Representative** Sean Flynn **Veterans Representative** David Sherlock **Outer East Region Director & VMCU delegate** Pat Meehan **Marketing Manager** Jo Fairy

#### **Senior Committee**

ChairmanPat MeehanSecretaryStuart MinettiRegistration Secretary/My Cricket AdminAdam Kuklycx

Other committee members Steve Pascoe, Tony Gawne, Matt Thomas,

Michael King, Wayne Hartle, David Peel, Paul Broussard, Dave Raggett, Chris Anderson

and Phil Lovell

#### **Junior Committee**

Junior President:Sean FlynnJunior Secretary:Bill StaffordJunior Representative Coordinator:Bill Stafford

#### **Veterans Committee**

Veterans President:David SherlockVeterans Secretary:Peter ChamingsVeterans MyCricket:Murray KeenVeterans General Committee:Paul Jones

#### Other

Media - Website/FacebookDave RaggetUmpires Association PresidentPaul DentonUmpires Association SecretaryTony GawneBall ManagerIan SpencerMember Protection OfficerIan Dench

#### Life Members:

J. Austin (dec) J. Barrett (dec) A. Bonnett (dec) G. Chapman (dec) W. Dean (dec) P. Edie (dec) C. Hochkins (dec) R. Johnston (dec) L.H. McLeod (dec) A. Miles (dec) Mrs. A. Pascoe A. Reidy (dec) I. Spencer	R. Baldwin (dec) D. Beatty J. Browne (dec) F. Clota (dec) I. Dench T. Gawne F. Hodgkins (dec) S. Lennard (dec) P. McCallum (OAM) (dec) P. Meehan S. Pascoe (OAM) L. Salvana (dec) J. Springett (dec)	W. Baldwin (dec) F. Bibby I. Callen M. Cooper (dec) K. Dunham (dec) J. Goodall (dec) P. James (dec) J. Luscombe J. Macmillan (dec) A. Neil (dec) F. Pegler (dec) C. Sleeman (dec) W. Stafford N. Tull	W. Barkway (dec) R. Bisset (dec) G. Chandler (dec) T. Court R. Ellis (dec) T.A. Hall (dec) K. Johnston (dec) H. Matthews (dec) G. Mason S. Newey C. Puddyphatt (dec) D. Smith (dec) R. Stoney (dec)
•	,		• • •
N. Taylor (dec)	L. Trollope (dec)		A. Wescott (dec)
R.G. Wilkins (dec)	W. Wilkins (OAM)	M. Williams (dec)	

#### Awarded Life Membership in the YVCA

D Campbell	A. Cowley	T.H.T. Drummond	R. Finger
V. Haag	A. Hammond	C. Hodgson	G.L. Johnson
W. Johnson	W. Madden	R. McGuire	W. McLean
G. Mitchell	J. Pocket	D.J. Strachan	H.W. Riseborough
K. Thompson			

#### Hall of Fame

#### Legends

J.F. (Fred) Hodgkins S.J.(Steve) Pascoe OAM I.J. (lan) Spencer K.L. (Lindsay) Trollope ASM W.R. (Bill) Wilkins OAM

#### Inductees

R. W. (Roy) Baldwin OAM, W.K. (Bill) Baldwin, A.R. (Bob) Bisset, W.D. (Bill) Dean OAM J.P., K.B. (Ken) Johnston, P.T. (Pat) Meehan, S.N. (Stuart) Newey, A. J. (Ann) Pascoe, D.W. (Don) Smith, K.G. (Ken) Trollope, M.A. (Mark) Unternahrer.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

BOM REPORTS	4
President - Michael Finn	4
Finance Manager - Graeme Seymour	6
VMCU - Pat Meehan	11
Outer East Metro - Pat Meehan	12
SENIOR COMMITTEE REPORTS	14
Secretary - Stuart Minetti	14
Representative Cricket - Pat Meehan	17
Umpires Association - Tony Gawne	19
JUNIOR COMPETITION REPORT	22
Chairman- Sean Flynn	22
Junior Secretary - Bill Stafford	23
Representative Coordinator - Bill Stafford	28
VETERANS COMPETITION REPORT	30
Chairman - Dave Sherlock	30
STATISTICAL INFORMATION 2020/2021	32
LINDSAY TROLLOPE SHIELD	33
BILL WILKINS CUP	36
STUART NEWEY PLATE	39
STEVE PASCOE SHIELD	41
PAT MEEHAN SHIELD	44
IAN SPENCER SHIELD	47
"A" GRADE – DAVID BEATTY SHIELD	50
"B" GRADE – DON SMITH SHIELD	53
"C" GRADE – JOHN SPRINGETT SHIELD	56
"D" GRADE – NEIL TULL SHIELD	59
"E" GRADE – ANN PASCOE SHIELD	62
"YV" GRADE – DJ STRACHAN SHIELD	65
"YV" GRADE – RA FINGER TROPHY	69
"YV" GRADE – ADRIAN HAMMOND SHIELD	72
"M1" GRADE – IAN DENCH SHIELD	75
"M2" GRADE – JOHN MACMILLAN SHIELD	78
"M3" GRADE – TIMOTHY COURT SHIELD	81
"M4" GRADE – TONY GAWNE SHIELD	84
"M5" GRADE	87
"M6" GRADE	90
Masters 1 - Bill Dean Trophy	93
Masters 2 - Ken Johnston Trophy	96
AWARD WINNERS	99
Vale Don Smith	105
Vale Phil Mcallum	106
Vale John Macmillan	107

# **BOM REPORTS**

#### President - Michael Finn

We got there!!

We played cricket every week apart from one, we even played finals this season where premierships were decided by balls being bowled and matches being played.

How good was it to be back playing cricket after a long locked down winter – Fantastic.

Amidst all of that was the ever-present challenges of a season driven by Covid challenges and requirements.

We even had a RDCA Centenary Celebration & Hall of Fame Induction Night, The RDCA's most successful season ever at the VMCU Junior Rep Carnival and a merger with the YVCA thrown in there for good measure.

So to say for the RDCA it was an interesting, challenging but completely rewarding journey was an understatement.

In the toughest of times the RDCA grew, shone and displayed the very best of all of us.

There are many to thank,

My fellow Board Members Timothy Court and Graeme Seymour in very trying times, a job very well done.

To all the Committee Chairs Pat Meehan, Sean Flynn and Dave Sherlock and their committee members through to the Umpires a huge thank you.

Special mention must go to Pat Meehan, Stuart Minetti, David Peel and Paul Broussard who formed the RDCA / YVCA transition committee to ensure a great first season for new clubs from the Yarra Valley.

To the Hall of Fame organising committee lead by Ian Dench, Pat Meehan, Jo Fairy, Tony Gawn and Steve Pascoe along with several others a huge thank you two years in the making for the execution of a wonderful evening honouring our Hall of Fame & Legends Inductees as well as honouring the RDCA's newest life member Gregor Mason.

To Jo Fairy for doing an outstanding job in very difficult times this year with marketing and sponsorship – very well done.

To Dave Raggett for his great work on the RDCA Radio show and looking after our media a job well done.

To all our sponsors who stuck with us and continue to grow, thank you.

A special thank you to Paul Attfield at Saxons Sports for his more than 25 years of support as well as Sarah Gillam from Fusion Graphic arts for our new website.

Finally and most importantly, for the season that passed more than ever before a huge thank you to all the players, clubs, club committees and volunteers that were faced with a series of challenges to play this year none of us had seen before.

Your commitment to doing what was required, your commitment to ensuring cricket was able to be played and most importantly your commitment to each other as club mates was outstanding and again displayed the very best of community sport.

#### The season that was

The merger of the YVCA into the RDCA was a process that was over 8 months in the making.

Lots of painstaking work was done in the background to ensure all the YVCA clubs and their history is acknowledged and preserved.

We are very determined to ensure a new chapter in the valley for all cricket communities can now be written.

I would like to pay tribute to the committee of the YVCA for their vision, foresight and courage to take the steps that whilst hard, were necessary to progress forward.

To YVCA President David Peel and Vice President Paul Broussard a very large thank you for all your hard work.

In our Senior and Junior grades we welcomed the Yarra Valley Cricket Association into our fold which proved to be a great success.

Our Senior competition expanded with the addition of the clubs from the Yarra Valley into not only the RDCA main draw but also forming several Valley Region grades to ensure all clubs could participate on their best level appropriately.

The RDCA Juniors go from strength to strength. 250 teams, over 27 different divisions with 21 different premiers. All age grades experienced strong growth. In particular a great result for our girls competition growing from 23-31 teams.

The RDCA Veterans comp whilst having a delayed start finished strongly. Both Masters Grades had full seasons and the Vets T20 Big Bash continues to grow from strength to strength.

For more detailed updates on each of the competitions please refer to respective reports given.

Finally, as many would have seen, the RDCA is the first local association to be awarded the rights from Cricket Victoria to run the Women's senior competition taking over in the East from the WCCC.

Another major win for the RDCA and local Women's cricket with clear pathways now being set in motion from Blasters to Juniors now through to Seniors for all RDCA female players.

#### Looking forward into season 21/22

The upcoming season sees us filled with great enthusiasm and optimism and yet again the RDCA for the second year in a row will further expand in size and scope.

As a Board of Management our focus will be to ensure we continually revise and refine our strategic plans and then execute them effectively with the learnings of last season across all areas.

Key drivers for our planning are Growth, Integration and Financial Astuteness across all RDCA verticals.

To continue to communicate all relevant messages effectively to our clubs.

To remain vigilant on what Covid may still have in store for us

To focus on growing participation rates in all areas, in particular our Girls and new Women's competition.

The establishment of a new Senior Women's committee to oversee the new women's comp.

To further refine and integrate the senior Men's competition with our new Valley clubs into the RDCA main draw.

Above all else, to ensure the RDCA remains the premier community cricket competition in Victoria serving now every member and every gender in all of it's many local communities.

Best of luck to all clubs in the upcoming season

# Finance Manager - Graeme Seymour

Season 2020/21 was a very "different" season for the RDCA. COVID19 delayed our season start, forced us to introduce a season of all one-day games, cancelled one round mid-season, required the Association to pay all Umpires via EFT and of course was the first year of the amalgamation with the former Yarra Valley Cricket Association ("YVCA") which considerably expanded the whole Association Club & Team numbers.

Notwithstanding all the above, the season was a financial success. Although we have reported a small financial loss for the year of \$1,287 (2020 \$6,122 surplus), included in this loss were some expenses directly attributable to season 2019/20. Because there were no Presentation Nights held in 2019/20, all Junior & Senior Trophies were not purchased until August 2020. This cost was \$5,371.

Excluding Umpire match day fees collected & paid on behalf of Clubs & Umpires which is just a "contra" exercise, the RDCA's revenues increased from \$242,240 (2020) to \$308,756. This increase can be largely attributed to the expanded competition post the YVCA amalgamation. Affiliation fees increased from \$44,514 to \$56,718, Ball Sales increased from \$118,777 to \$153,043. In addition, the RDCA received Government COVID Grants of \$8,000 plus a Grant from Cricket Victoria of \$5,500.

Association Expenditure increased from \$236,118 in 2020 to \$310,283 for season 2021. The major increases being Ball Costs which increased from \$113,925 to \$142,488, previous seasons Trophy costs referred to above of \$5,371, cost of implementing the 1BreadCrumb App for COVID compliance requirements \$13,860. Other expenses increased commensurately with the increased size of the Association post the YVCA amalgamation.

At season end the Association is in an extremely strong financial position with cash on hand of \$163,472 (2020 \$74,222). Included in this cash reserve is \$86,058 being the current balance of the funds transferred from the YVCA on amalgamation. These funds have been

earmarked for the ongoing support of the former YVCA Clubs in accordance with the Transition Agreement signed between the RDCA & the YVCA.

I would like to thank all Club Treasurers for their cooperation during the season and all Association financial sponsors (as mentioned elsewhere in the Annual Report) for their continuing support. Without these sponsors, the RDCA would not be the pre-eminent suburban Cricket association its is today.

Ringwood & District Cricket Assoc ABN 33 869 448 061	iation Inc.	
Income & Expenditure Staten Year Ended 31 May 2021	nent	
	2021	2020
	\$	\$
Income		
Affiliation Fees	56,718	44,514
Umpires Subscriptions	2,346	2,155
Veterans Match fees etc.	2,141	1,645
Veterans T20 Competition Registration fees	3,636	4,000
Fines & Charges		
Fines	4,220	3,880
Forfeited Bond/Guarantee Funds	-	2,000
Late Payment Fines	-	590
Junior Raffle	-	2,182
Junior Carnival Clothing & Coaching fees recouped	11,295	7,532
Donations/Sponsorship	42,578	44,911
Grants - Government	8,000	
Cricket Victoria	5,500	-
VMCU Junior Carnival Umpire Subsidy	4,790	3,000
Investigation Officer Costs Recouped	50	14
Sundry Income	37	27
Centenary Celebrations	6,995	
Umpire Match Day fees collected	96,630	
Dividend received - Telstra	216	
Interest received	230	637
Sales		
Ball Sales (Net of Rebates)	153,043	118,777
Scorebook Sales	5.570	4,590
Umpires Equipment & Clothing	632	861
Veterans Clothing	132	938
Wine sales	627	-
Total Sales	160,004	125,166
Total Income	405,386	242,240
Cost of Sales	400,000	242,240
Cricket Ball Purchases	142,488	113,925
Scorebook Costs	5,195	4,394
Wine Purchases	270	4,004
Total Cost of Sales	147,953	118,319
Gross Profit	257,433	123,921

xpenses Administration Expenses		
Honorarium	24,000	21,2
Administration Manager Expense	200	1
	1,000	1,0
Social Media Manager	1,000	
VMCU Delegate Expenses	4.500	40
Junior Co-ordinator	1,500	1,5
Junior Carnival Expenses		6
Bank charges	158	
Advertising	-	1
Photography Contract	5,045	3,6
Marketing Expenses	12,000	12,7
Strategic Plan Development costs		5,0
Total Administration Expenses	43,904	46,3
Operating Expenses	•	
Telephone & Internet Costs	1,407	1,3
Printing & Typing	100	1,6
Computer Maint/Software	1,156	6
Government Charges	1,100	
Ground & Hall rental	3,202	6
	450	5
Affiliation & Registration Fees		
Website Hosting	1,877	1,2
Pavilion Rent	1,845	1,6
Pavilion Expenses	334	2
Live Streaming costs	5,636	2,0
Audit Fee	600	6
RDCA/YVCA Amalgamation costs	473	
Umpires match day payments	96,390	
Sundry Expenses	0	
Junior Carnival Coaches Fees	9,800	6,9
Junior Carnival Player Subsidy	_	1,5
Umpires Fees	12,215	8,0
Umpires expenses	426	6
20/20 Competition Prize Monies	3,000	3,0
Depreciation of equipment	1,210	1,5
	-	
Pennants, Plaques & Medals	4,404	2,6
Beyond Blue Night	-	9
Player Insurance	68	- 100
Centenary Celebrations costs	9,768	3,7
COVID-19 Costs	13,860	
Total Operating Expenses	168,222	39,8
Social Expenses	-	
Senior Presentation Night	-	3
Junior Presentation Night	1,469	
Catering	1,201	2,3
Total Social Expenses	2,670	2,7
Veterans Expenses	1,165	1,4
Equipment, Clothing, Trophies		
Junior Trophies & Medals	12,489	5,7
Caps & Clothing purchased	12,014	16,5
Umpires Clothing	7,010	7
Umpires Manuals	7,010	7
•	40.246	
Senior Trophies & Medals	10,246	2,5
Ball handling expenses	1,000	1,0
Miscellaneous equipment		
Total Equipment, Clothing, Trophies	42,760	27,3
otal Expenses	258,720	117,7
et Income /(Loss) for the Year	(\$1,287)	\$6,1

# Ringwood & District Cricket Association Inc. ABN 33 869 448 061

# Statement of Assets & Liabilities As at 31st May 2021

		2021	2020
Assets	-	\$	\$
Current Assets			
Cash On Hand			
Cheque Account		44,788	33,981
Cricket Ball Account		7,905	5,621
Club Guarantee Funds		4,100	3,100
RDCA/YVCA Transition Funds		86,058	
Term Deposits Bendigo Bank - Mooroolbark		20,621	31,520
Total Cash On Hand	Ø <del> </del>	163,472	74,222
Debtors - Clubs & Others	K	14,252	8,763
Sundry Debtors		108	3,734
GST Refundable		503	
Prepayments		1,500	142
Total Current Assets	A	179,835	86,861
Stocks	-	E100,004 E0-0-00	
Best & Fairest Medals		1,428	1,058
Cricket Balls		3,135	4,675
Caps & Clothing		10,357	9,432
Score Books		358	-,
Premiership Medals		47	1,891
Total Stocks	/2	15,325	17,056
Investments		,	
Shares - Telstra Corporation Ltd		4,131	
Total Investments		4,131	
Fixed Assets	-	1,1101	
Computers and Printers		6,295	6,295
Office Furniture & Equipment		14,000	14,000
Other Equipment		2,364	2,365
Accumulated Depreciation	-	(17,820)	(16,610)
Total Fixed Assets	-	4,838	6,049
Total Assets	\$		\$ 109,966
		2011	* 20,000
Liabilities			
Current Liabilities			
Trade Creditors		8,749	-
GST Liability			583
Centenary Booking Monies Held in advance			13,000
Sundry Creditors & accruals		2,086	2,784
Total Current Liabilities		10,836	16,366
Non Current Liabilities			
Club Guarantee Monies		4,100	3,100
Total Non Current Liabilities		4,100	3,100
Total Liabilities		14,936	19,466
Net Assets	\$	189,193	90,500
Members Funds			
Accumulated funds		90,500	84,378
YVCA Transition Funds		99,980	
Current Year Earnings		-1,287	6,122
Total Members Funds	-\$	189,193	

# VMCU - Pat Meehan

Pat Meehan continued to represent the RDCA as our delegate to this body.

The VMCU consists of a Board made up of the 8 Directors of each Metropolitan Region, together with delegates from every Metropolitan Cricket Association. Pat Meehan is both the Director – Outer East on the Board and the RDCA Delegate.

Over the past season the main cricket activities have related to the management and implementation of metropolitan cricket and the impacts of Covid-19 which delayed the commencement of the season to mid-November 2020. The latter meant that this season the representative matches associated with CV State – wide T20 competition and the VMCU U/21 Neil Wright Shield were not held; however, the VMCU Junior Carnival proceeded in January 2021.

This junior competition comprised of 106 teams, including 33 girls teams, with about 1,300 players from 12 Associations – reduced from last season as the Mornington Peninsula Cricket and West Gippsland Cricket Associations did not enter teams due to the impacts of Covid-19 on team selections process.

The RDCA was strongly represented with 14 teams entered in all grades, including three extra teams in the second grades of boys U/12, U/14 and U/16 to cater for the increased number of players following the merger with the YVCA. Success came with premierships in the U/14 Allen Shield, U/16 Mackay Shield and U/16 Jones Shield (our first girls premiership) with another four teams competing in the semi-finals – U12 Fatone Shield (girls), U/14 Nolan Shield, U/16 Beitzel Shield and U/18 Arnold Shield (girls). An outstanding success which everyone in the RDCA can be proud of. Congratulations to all the players, coaches, team managers, administrators and parents for their hard work associated with all teams in the Carnival to achieve the best result ever for the RDCA.

The most significant matters dealt with during the season were:

- Negotiations with CV staff for 2020/21 cricket season and assessment of options for a delayed start due to Covid-19 lockdowns. Most Associations commenced on Saturday 14<sup>th</sup> November 2020 and fixtured 14 No. one day matches with finals. Discussions were also held on possible funding assistance to Associations and clubs for loss of sponsorship and other sources of income. As a result, some State Government, Cricket Australia and Cricket Victoria grants were received. Some councils either waived their annual rental charges or provided a reduction to clubs.
- Extensive discussions with CV on both male and female participation statistics with particular emphasis on junior boys and girls cricket, together with the transition from school programs to club cricket.
- VMCU discussions and input to CV Pathway Program, Youth Premier League (which
  was not held due to financial and Covid-19 impacts) and Premier Cricket proposals
  for all relevant age groups for both male and female championships. The VMCU
  Junior Carnival is part of the junior pathway structure.

- Identification of Member Protection Policy issues, being experienced in the implementation by Associations and clubs, to be considered as part of the current CV review and update of the policy. Urgent resolution of these issues was requested with a view to creating a new readable document.
- Implementation of Australian Cricket's Child Safety Framework by all Associations and clubs to meet the Victorian Child Safe Standards, especially the appointment of Child Safety Officers at all clubs state-wide. Clubs need to formally minute acceptance of the process to CV before the commencement of next season.
- Continuing negotiations with CA/CV on MyCricket issues being experienced by Associations and clubs, particularly with live scoring, team entries for matches and results administration. A replacement platform – PlayHQ – is being developed by CA contractors with staged implementation and trials of modules prior to implementation in 2022/2023. Trials of completed modules via Webinars are being produced every 3-4 months to provide progress on updates and seeking feedback, etc.
- Reviewed progress on the possible restructure of all cricket as set out in CV's Metropolitan Cricket Strategy. As with some Associations, due to the reduction of CV funding and regional staff, the RDCA formally withdrew in June 2020 from the process on the proposed Cricket East Metro. In addition, our key pillars / deliverables were not being met with the models under consideration.
- Undertaking a review of the U/21 Neil Wright Shield format as only a few Associations have competed in recent seasons. The competition was not held this season due to the impacts of Covid-19 on Associations.

In addition, the VMCU is also the body which deals with both club and player appeals against penalties imposed by an Association, which if it meets the criteria, would be considered by its independent panel for final resolution.

#### Outer East Metro - Pat Meehan

The Outer East Region covers the municipalities of Knox, Maroondah and Yarra Ranges and comprises of clubs in the Ringwood and District Cricket Association (VMCU Affiliate) and the Ferntree Gully Cricket Association (VCCL Affiliate). The Yarra Valley Cricket Association merged with the RDCA in mid-2020 to comprise of 40 clubs (just before the start of the season two clubs – Gruyure and Warburton amalgamated with Seville CC. A smooth and successful transition and integration of the Senior, Junior and Umpires Sections was achieved. Premier Cricket is represented in the region by Ringwood Cricket Club with the Victorian Sub-District Cricket Association represented by both Bayswater and Croydon Cricket Clubs.

C V staff operating in the region for the season were Clinton Kennon, Area Manager; Stephen Box, Cricket Manager and Sharon Lynas, Club Officer. These people assisted all clubs and worked closely with them and schools in the region to offer a program of clinics, competitions and activities to increase the availability of cricket in various formats to both male and female participants.

Ringwood C.C. is our partner for the regional pathway program and assists in the management and coaching of the Outer East Eagles male and female squads in the Youth Premier League (which was not held this season due to financial and Covid reasons). In addition, the club has established an Annual Outer East T20 Challenge Trophy competition between the Associations. This was also not held due to the late start of the season and T20 competitions. The Annual RCC v RDCA match was played at Jubilee Park, main oval, on Wednesday 24<sup>th</sup> February 2021, with the RCC winning by 12 runs.

The region was strongly represented in the VMCU Junior Carnival held in January 2021 as the RDCA entered 14 teams in all grades ( with three extra teams in the second grades of boys U/12, U/14 and U/16 to cater for the increased number of players following the merger with YVCA) and FTGDCA entered 9 teams plus a combined U/18 girls team with ECA. RDCA were the premiers in the U/14 Allen Shield, U/16 Mackay Shield and U/16 Jones Shield with another 4 teams competing in the semi-finals – U/12 Fatone Shield, U/14 Nolan Shield, U/16 Beitzel Shield and U/18 Arnold Shield. The combined FTGDCA/ECA U/18 Fitzpatrick Shield was the only FTGDCA finalist team. Congratulations to all concerned with these teams. Overall an excellent performance by the RDCA – their best ever in this competition.

Women's cricket continues to grow within the region both at Premier Cricket level with RCC and the Associations. The RDCA girls competition grew again this season with 29 teams in 5 grades compared to 3 grades and 23 teams in the previous season. The standard is also improving evidenced with their U/16 Jones team winning their first girls premiership in the above Carnival. The RDCA Board is considering the possibility of introducing a women's senior grade in the future to provide a club pathway for all junior girls in the region.

With the reduction in CV funding and regional staff, the RDCA formally withdrew from the investigation of the proposed Cricket East Metro between ECA, BHRDCA and RDCA. However discussions are current on a number of mutual aspects to the three Associations such as umpires management, tribunals and junior cricket. Some initiatives arising are being implemented by individual Associations.

# SENIOR COMMITTEE REPORTS

# Secretary - Stuart Minetti

"This too shall pass." COVID-19 pandemic.

In signing off the annual report for last season I mentioned that the worst of the COVID-19 pandemic seemed to be over and so it was, but it continued to significantly impact our season and continues to impact our lives as we approach next season. As season 2020/21 approached Victoria was still in a Stage 4 lockdown with diminishing prospects of a cricket season happening. All winter local sport had been completely cancelled. At the RDCA AGM Yarra Valley Cricket Association's application to amalgamate with the RDCA was approved and so there was much work to do to enable a smooth transition for originally 12 and finally (with a double club merger) 10 new clubs joining our ranks.

The structure of our Senior Committee took on significant change with 2 representatives from Yarra Valley CA and four new members recruited by our President.

Role	Name	Meets	Role	Name	Meets
Chair	Pat Meehan	10	Secretary	Stuart Minetti	10
Registration Sec MyCricket Admin	Adam Kuklycx	10	Umpires Sec Fines Officer	Tony Gawne	10
Players Rep	Michael King	8	T20 & Modified	Matt Thomas	9
Rules/Discipline	Wayne Hartley	9	Media/PR	Dave Raggett	5
Minute Sec	Chris Anderson	9	Health & Welfare	Shane Kelton	2*
Committee	Steve Pascoe	9			
YVCA Transition	Dave Peel	10	YVCA Transition	Paul Broussard	9
Rules sub-com	Phil Lovell	7	Rules sub-com	Adam Hinds	3*

In today's busy world some of our new members found they could not make the time needed to provide a meaningful contribution and for perfectly valid reasons had to withdraw\*. All committee meetings were conducted using the now very familiar Zoom meeting app which proved highly successful even with meetings of up to 50.

With our season start in much doubt, we commenced the integration of another 34 teams into our fixture and with the 10 from the previous season it meant our senior competition had expanded by over 37% in just two seasons to 161 teams. We prepared grades that provided for the inclusion of a new team into Newey and four new teams into Pascoe Shield. To smooth the transition for all we included 10 teams into Meehan and maintained 3 smaller grades for Yarra Valley only.

As part of the integration of the clubs from the former Yarra Valley Cricket Association, a formal Transition Committee was formed and met about bi-monthly. The committee was chaired by Pat Meehan and included RDCA Senior and Junior Secretaries, RDCA Finance Manager and former YVCA President, David Peel and Vice President, Paul Broussard. This

proved to be a very effective committee enabling the transition both administratively and on-field with very little fuss. The committee continues to meet to tidy up the final financial and legal requirements. A post-season review with Yarra Valley clubs clearly indicated they were very pleased with the transition and most are looking forward to becoming integrated into the RDCA District and Modified Divisions.

Approval to commence training finally came through in mid-October and clubs were permitted strictly controlled training sessions for three weeks before our season that would start on the 14<sup>th</sup> November 2020. This start date enabled us to fit 14 H&A rounds of all one-dayers plus finals. To simplify our grading structure we made some minor, but important changes. We introduced 3 Divisions for the main RDCA grades and one for Yarra Valley. Premier Division was expanded to include Spencer Shield and only contains 1<sup>st</sup> and 2<sup>nd</sup> XI teams. Grades A to E were grouped as District Division and our Modified format was renamed grades M1 to M6 in Modified Division. The Yarra Valley Division comprised 3 grades, Strachan, Finger and Hammond.

Our season experienced relatively good weather with no rounds being washed out. COVID-19 reared its head again in mid-February 2021 when the government enforced a one-week lockdown which automatically cancelled round 12. We moved into finals in March and this season because we had all one-day finals, we were able to make each of the Sundays a reserve day. This proved to be quite significant because Saturday the 13<sup>th</sup> March 2021 was quite wet and it was also Grand Final day for all our lower grades. The RDCA Senior Weather Committee decided early that morning to reschedule all games to the Sunday. This proved to be the correct decision as the Sunday provided an excellent forum for all finals to play to their full conclusion.

Over the years this report has continually noted the strong and effective communications required between club secretaries and our Association administrators to make everything work well. Never more so was this required than season 2020/21 with the combination of the COVID-19 pandemic and the quite strict plans and operations and the integration of the YVCA clubs. Thank you to all club secretaries, especially our new brethren from the Yarra Valley as they embraced all the changes and were very responsive in getting things done. A huge team effort that delivered 2,177 senior games of cricket with a minimum of fuss. Some interesting statistics:

Individual players who played at least one game of Senior cricket – 2,751

Least number of players played in one grade – Trollope with 130

Most number of players played in one grade – M4 with 283

Average number of players used per grade increases for every grade from Trollope to E Grade (with the exception of B Grade which used the most players)

The 2 Trollope Grand Finalists used the least number of players for any teams – 14, as did 2 other Grand Finalists, Norwood in Wilkins and Heathwood in Meehan.

Thanks to Ian Spencer and Pat Meehan for liaising and meeting with council officers as required during the season and to Ian Spencer for again very competently organising all scorebook and cricket ball supplies.

Ground shortages for Saturday cricket remain an issue in most council areas and all councils we work with managed to supply replacement grounds or extra grounds where required to avoid playing on Sundays. Silcock North and South (Croydon Ranges) was being redeveloped, so was unplayable for the entire season, replaced by Griff Hunt. Wandin Reserve (Wandin) was out of action, replaced with Silvan Rec Reserve. Templeton was supposed to have its 2 main grounds (Templeton and Milperra) back by the end of November but they weren't available until Feb-21. Warrandyte and Wonga Park with high team numbers continued to stretch Manningham Council for extra grounds, but all were able to be accommodated.

We still managed to run our T20 competition, with 5 round robin rounds squeezed in before Christmas and the finals in late January. Congratulations to the Grand Finalists – Ainslie Park and South Croydon (Trollope), played at Ainslie Park and Bayswater Park and South Warrandyte (Wilkins) played at Guy Turner Reserve. T20 Grand Finals were played on the evening of Monday 25<sup>th</sup> January with the winners being Ainslie Park and South Warrandyte. Montrose CC is to be congratulated for the excellent feat of getting all 6 of their senior teams into the finals. Four teams made it to their Grand Finals and two achieved premierships and one got pipped on the very last ball. A great all-round club effort that made Montrose CC a runaway winner of the Phil McCallum Senior Club Championship. Congratulations to Wantirna South CC who won the Bob Bissett Best Administered Club award, and Healesville 2<sup>nd</sup> XI, the Bob Ellis Spirit of Cricket award.

Congratulations to all grade premiers – 16 different clubs out of 37 across 20 grades were premiership winners. Multiple winners were Montrose, Norwood, South Warrandyte and Wonga Park all with 2 premierships each.

To all the individual trophy winners, well done and whilst they are individual awards, clubs will be proud of their members' achievement. Notably, two of our medalists are back-to-back winners, Ryan Smith (South Croydon) and Trent Sier (Ainslie Park).

Bill Dean Medal	_	Ryan Smith	(South Croydon)	16 votes
Bill Wilkins Medal	_	David Johnson	(Warranwood)	20 votes
Stuart Newey Medal	_	Amith Eranda	(Scoresby)	17 votes
Steve Pascoe Medal	_	Trent Sier	(Ainslie Park)	15 votes
Pat Meehan Medal	_	Chris Deidun	(Heathwood)	16 votes
Ian Spencer Medal	_	Armaan Brar	(Wantirna)	16 votes
Strachan Medal	_	Michael Pezzementi	(Coldstream)	18 votes
Finger Medal	_	Tyler Tweedle	(Healesville)	9 votes

The Fred Hodgkins All-Star Team of the season, congratulations to the following players: (Player statistics do not include finals games)

	Player	Club	Achievements
1	Cameron Smith	Wantirna South	444 runs @ 37.00
2	Ryan Smith	South Croydon	388 runs @ 32.33 and 19 wkts @ 17.84

			376 runs @ 34.18, 26 catches, 4 stumpings
3	Keiran Perkins	Montrose	and 4 run outs (Wicketkeeper)
4	Simon Gray	North Ringwood	410 runs @58.57
5	Troy McGown	Wantirna South	418 runs @ 38.00
6	Michael McDonald	Wantirna South	416 runs @ 32.00
7	Simon Young	Mooroolbark	17 wkts @13.53
8	Leigh Jones	Ainslie Park	21 wickets @ 15.19
9	Luke Ridgwell	North Ringwood	25 wickets @ 14.32
10	Rory Tattersall	South Croydon	18 wickets @ 19.67
11	Drew McKay	Wantirna South	23 wickets @ 15.74 (Captain)

With our 2019/20 combined Presentation Night with the RDCA Centenary Celebration Dinner being cancelled, our Board of Management decided to hold the RDCA Centenary Dinner at the end of March and not have a Senior Presentation Night. A well-attended dinner was very capably hosted by Ian Dench and an undoubted highlight of the night was Ian's 15-minute presentation on the history of our RDCA. That was followed by the held over presentation of RDCA Life membership to Gregor Mason and a special RDCA Sponsor award of recognition to Saxon Sport's Paul Attfield for over 15 years of continuous sponsorship and support.

Then came the two main events for the night starting with the inaugural Hall of Fame Inductions carried over from 2019/20 and the inductions for 2020/21. Each of the 16 Inductees was introduced with a concise but informative summary of their achievements which had no problem holding the interest of all present. The night concluded with the inaugural induction of 5 Hall of Famers as RDCA Legends with short speeches from those able to be present. Feedback from the night was very positive from a wide range of attendees. Sincere thanks to our organisers Jo Fairy, Tony Gawne and Ian Dench.

The RDCA Senior Awards for season 2020/21 were postponed until April and presented in a similar manner to 2019/20 over two nights at Saxon Sports and thanks to Tony Gawne for again organising a very successful presentation and to Saxon Sports for hosting the nights. We have managed to navigate an interesting and at times challenging path to complete season 2020/21 very successfully. Our weekend cricket does not just magically happen. It requires the input of many people who voluntarily give so much of their time and effort, so thank you again to all who have helped us this season. It is only with everyone's contribution to a massive team effort that the community, our member clubs, and participants will continue to benefit in more ways than just playing cricket.

There is little doubt that the COVID-19 pandemic will continue to impact us, but hopefully with ever lessening effects. Our local community cricket will continue to grow and provide a key sporting activity and its critical social support. The RDCA continues to have exciting and interesting times ahead.

# Representative Cricket - Pat Meehan

1. U/21 Neil Wright Shield.

This competition was not held this season due to impacts of Covid -19 and the mid-November start to all Associations seasons. VMCU is currently considering the future and format of this competition as previously only four Associations (including RDCA) competed.

#### 2. Annual ECA / BHRDCA / RDCA Trophies.

The round robin matches for two grades from each Association were not held again this season due to late finishes of Association's T20 Series due to Covid-19 and a lack of interest from potential players.

#### 3. Outer East T20 Challenge Trophy.

These matches were not played this season due to the late finishes of the Associations T20 Series and finding a suitable date based on availability of the Jubilee Park turf grounds. As YVCA has now merged with the RDCA the format and timing for next season will need to be reviewed with Ringwood C.C.

#### 4. Annual RDCA "All Stars" v Ringwood Rams.

This annual match was played on Wednesday 24<sup>th</sup> February 2021 at the main oval, Jubilee Park, Ringwood. The RDCA team comprised of the following players:

- 1. David Johnson Warranwood
- 2. Ryan Smith South Croydon
- 3. Taylor Gibson East Ringwood
- 4. Ben Hastie Norwood
- 5. Troy McGown Wantirna South
- 6. Jake Tucker Ainslie Park
- 7. Jesse Lynn St. Andrews
- 8. Troy Gstrien Bayswater Park
- 9. David Killen Ainslie Park
- 10. Caleb Daniel East Ringwood
- 11. Tyson Lacey South Croydon
- 12. Josh White Wonga Park

RDCA won the toss and elected to bowl.

#### Ringwood Rams 1<sup>st</sup> Innings

Jason Harthill	caught Daniel bowled Johnson	41
Pat Ashton	bowled Lacey	7
Tom Rogers	bowled Gstrien	20
Arjun Dhull	caught and bowled Johnson	29
Jake Toohey	run out (Lacey)	25
Jackson Freeman	caught Johnson bowled Smith	0
Jason Roberts	not out	30
B. Eustice	not out	12

(Did not bat – Ben Gibson, Alex Meehan, Jake Carter, Vishwa Ramkumar, Tom Humphries.)

Extras 10

Total 6/174 cc.

Bowling: C. Daniel 0/15 (2 overs), T. Lacey 1/25 (3 overs), J. White 0/25 (3 overs), T. Gstrien 1/32 (3 overs), J. Tucker 2/10 (2 overs), R. Smith 1/15 (2 overs), D. Johnson 2/17 (2 overs).

Fall of Wickets: 1/22, 2/51, 3/103, 4/104, 5/105, 6/153.

#### RDCA "All Stars" 1st Innings.

David Johnson	caught Eustace bowled Meehan	5
Ryan Smith	caught Rogers bowled Humphries	17
Taylor Gibson	caught Gibson bowled Rogers	45
Ben Hastie	run out	51
Troy Mc Gown	caught Gibson bowled Rogers	3
Jake Tucker	bowled Meehan	19
Jesse Lynn	not out	13
Troy Gstrien	not out	4

( Did not bat – David Killen, Daniel Caleb, Tyson Lacey, Josh White)

Extras 5

Total 6/162 cc.

Bowling: J. Freeman 0/27 (4 overs), A. Meehan 2/22 (3 overs), T. Humphries 1/23 (2 overs), V. Ramkumar 0/13 (2 overs), J. Toohey 0/20 (3 overs), P. Ashton 0/23 (2 overs), T. Rogers 2/32 (3 overs).

Fall of Wickets: 1/9, 2/42, 3/106, 4/112, 5/145, 6/152.

Ringwood Rams won by 12 runs in a great game.

Man of Match: RCC – Jason Harthill, RDCA – Ben Hastie.

Thanks to RDCA umpire Andy Laws and scorer Stuart Minetti.

Special thanks to Michael King (Senior Committee Player's Representative) for undertaking the roles of both selector and coach.

# Umpires Association - Tony Gawne

It's fair to say season 2020/2021 was very different from any other season from the outset, mainly due to the implications of the COVID pandemic. At one stage there was serious

thought about whether the season would start or not. Fortunately it did albeit in a shortened version with all games including finals being played as one day fixtures.

On behalf of the Executive I would like to acknowledge the support of our members throughout the year and especially welcome those who joined us for the first time. The merger with the Yarra Valley Cricket Association resulted in an additional 8 umpires joining our ranks so at one stage our active list grew to 53 to start the season. We lost a few on the way for various reasons but the pleasing part was that 12 new umpires joined the ranks through the season and all adjusted well and impressed in their inaugural season. At times unavailability stretched our resources and commitment and despite our desire to have 2 umpires standing in each Premier Grade, realistically with the introduction of the lan Spencer grade and servicing Strachan Shield in Yarra Hub, it was always going to be difficult. The feedback through our Captains' Reports on Umpires' Performance indicates members are generally exceeding expectations. However Club leaders need to be aware these reports are well used by the Executive and Selectors to monitor the individual performance of the umpires so rather than just giving number ratings specific comments to justify their assessment is vital in evaluating their overall performance.

On behalf of the RDCAUA Executive group I acknowledge the support and guidance provided by Chairman Paul Denton in the management of the RDCA Umpires' Association. It was a hard act to follow the long-serving Steve Pascoe but his extensive past experience on the Executive assisted him with almost a seamless transition.

Solid support was provided by Jordon Russell (Assistant Secretary & Social), Andy Laws (Chairman of Selectors), Shawn Everitt (Recruitment), Barry Johnson (Property), Steve Pascoe (Umpires' Mentor), Warren Gilbert (Observer/Training) and Graeme Lloyd (Umpires' Advisor / Training) continued the strong leadership and development of panel members all committed to the goal of raising umpiring standards. This season Doug Coldham joined the group in an ex-officio role to consider taking on a future Executive role.

Due to the ongoing restrictions on public gatherings the greater majority of our meetings this season were conducted via Zoom which kept our members well informed on the RDCA day-to-day issues and COVID updates. Member attendance improved significantly as a result and the thinking going forward is to conduct the early meetings face-to-face for induction and training purposes but where circumstances permit to revert to Zoom meetings. During the year the Executive and panel members chalked up many achievements, some of which are recognized here:

- Life Membership to RDCAUA was bestowed on Graeme Lloyd, who has been the Umpires Advisor and Training Officer since 2001/2002. Graeme continues to play an important role in keeping performance levels to the expected standard. His sessions are always thought provoking and well prepared.
- Congratulations to Eddie Wu & Shawn Everitt on their appointment to umpire the Trollope Grand Final, a just reward for Ed (who missed it last year because of lockdown) and the first for Shawn. IT topped off a great season for Shawn as he was received the Ken Dunham Award as "Umpire of the Year".
- Accreditation for Community Officiating (Level 1) and Working with Children is now a
  minimum requirement for all umpires. The process for both can now be completed
  on-line so it's a relatively easy process for new members and those seeking

reaccreditation. We continue to work towards all umpires completing and updating their status.

- RDCA Umpiring milestones awards were presented to Martien Pruysers who passed the 600 game milestone (now 613), Paul Denton the 500 game milestone (now 514), Marty Clohesy 400 (418), Leigh Murray (308), Barry Johnson (227), Noel Gilbert (205) and it's worth mentioning Lothar Pilz ending the season on 465 games.
- RDCAUA met all its umpiring commitments by providing umpires for all inter-Association matches, VMCU Junior Carnival, T20 fixtures and Veterans' Finals series. Thank you to all those members for their ongoing support.
- This season, and once again due to the COVID situation, the method of umpire payments changed and with the agreement of members payments were made electronically on a monthly basis. The new payment system was well received by the group and going forward will be maintained. I personally would like to thank Lothar Pilz & Graeme Seymour for their ongoing assistance in setting up a reliable payment system. Lothar's work in developing a workable template was outstanding and justified the many hours he spent in matching appointments to the fixtures in the MyCricket database.
- An end-of-season BBQ was arranged by Jordan Russell which was financially supported by the RDCA BoM and Senior Committee. A terrific evening was had by those attending (28) and our appreciation is extended to Sam Barnes & Wantirna South CC for hosting this event.

•

We now prepare for season 2021/2022 and the newly elected Executive Group have already turned their attention to preparations for next season. Doug Coldham is the newly elected Chairman and will be ably supported by Jordan Russell who has stepped up from Assistant Secretary to take on the Secretary role. It all starts again, the tweaking of rules, recruitment promotion, training – it doesn't really stop. If you know of anyone in your club or through your networks who may be interested in taking up umpiring please pass on details to Shawn Everitt who will touch base and provide all the necessary information to get them started. The best time to make these referrals is during the off season which allows new members sufficient time to complete the accreditation process. Our focus is to continue to expand our panel numbers and the progression from playing cricket to umpiring is the best option to recruit those who with a cricket background.

Thank you to all who contributed to the success of last season and, we trust, that support will continue in the future.

# JUNIOR COMPETITION REPORT

# Chairman- Sean Flynn

Despite all the challenges thrown at us we were able to run a tremendous season of Junior cricket. With a November start, we made the decision to make it a season of one day games and introduced a batting ball count in all divisions. This was done to ensure all players were given the opportunity to bat and bowl in most games and it was the best decision we made. Other competitions found it difficult to engage all players in short form cricket but our structure ensured this happened.

We welcomed the Yarra Valley Cricket Association into the RDCA and it was a great success. We were able to blend their sides into our existing divisions and it provided us greater flexibility with grading. It was great to see the Yarra Valley clubs getting challenged and playing exciting games of cricket each weekend.

The RDCA girls competition continues to grow and we increased from 23 to 31 teams. We also expanded the competition to have under 12, 14 & 16 age groups although new players are able to enter in at their appropriate skill level. This was the first time we had enough playing numbers to run a stage 3 competition and Mt Evelyn won an enthralling game against Templeton to collect the Mandy Dolman Division.

Overall there were 27 divisions of cricket playing for premierships and we had 21 different clubs win premierships. This is a fantastic result and shows how competitive our competition is. North Ringwood won the club championship and 4 premierships. Congratulations to all the Bulls who helped their club win this award for the 3<sup>rd</sup> year in a row.

We are very lucky to have a hard working and enthusiastic junior committee who ensure we run a professional competition. Bill Stafford stepped in as secretary taking over from Mandy Dolman. Bill fulfills so many important roles in the RDCA and it was fitting that we named the Club Champion award after him. Bill does all our fixturing and ground allocation early in the season. From there he focuses on the Representative Program and assembles coaches. Then it is trials and the January carnival. Once this is finished it is onto the RDCA finals and then a rest so he can watch the Cats in the AFL.

Doug Dowling took from Andy Exley in allocating umpires and was a welcome addition to the junior committee. He was joined by Cam Darwall and Leah Parker who joined our committee from the YVCA. It was great to have representation from the Valley and they both helped us gain a greater understanding of the needs of our new clubs.

Jas Harrison continued to oversee the outstanding girls program. Growing to 31 teams has exceeded our own expectations and Jas has been a key person in this space over the last 5 seasons. We expect further growth in this space and Jas should be applauded for her efforts to grow the competition and we look forward to these players moving into any number of senior teams over the coming seasons.

The strength of the junior committee is having quality people from a range of junior clubs assisting and making good decisions. We thank Luke Henderson from South Croydon, Sean

Meehan from Templeton and Steve Toohey from Warranwood who all provide wisdom, patience and their own vast array of experience to help the committee and our clubs.

The continued support of our major sponsor, Saxon Sports is invaluable. The ongoing support from Paul Attfield and Scott Brasher is much appreciated. Having access to their great indoor facility and the coaching they provide is so important for our young players. The rule changes we have implemented over the last few years have been met with widespread approval. They have improved the enjoyment our young players derive from the game. We thank the clubs for their ongoing support.

We had 250 teams this summer.

Under 10	up 7	from 44 to 51
Under 12	up 16	from 73 to 57
Under 14	up 8	from 49 to 57
Under 16	up 8	from 32 to 40
Girls	up 8	from 23 to 31

These numbers are strong even though they are helped by the BHRDCA and YVCA clubs joining our Saturday morning competitions. We are pleased that so many of our junior clubs are running very strong programs. Players being able to play in close and exciting games, where they all get the chance to contribute is a key to keeping these players involved in the sport as they transition to senior players.

I could not perform my role without the wonderful support I receive from my wife Maree. The summers are long but she is a great support and provides plenty of advice and a different perspective.

My final thank you is to our clubs. I am honored to be the President of the RDCA and thank you all for your support.

# Junior Secretary - Bill Stafford

COVID 19 which caused disruption to the end of last season was still with us. In September when clubs were trying to organise teams, Victoria were in the middle of a second wave of COVID and the government enforced a lock down in Metropolitan Melbourne. Eventually COVID was brought under control and Cricket Victoria in consultation with the state government developed a number of COVID protocols that would allow cricket to commence in November.

Our season started on 13<sup>th</sup> November and with only 14 weekends available a decision was made to play all one-day games including finals. Clubs quickly adopted to the COVID protocols and we were able to get the season completed. There was a minor setback in February when there was a minor out break of COVID and government enforced a 5 day lock down which resulted in round 11 being abandon.

The clubs are to be commended in these trying times in being able to organise teams, which was very difficult as any form of training was not allowed until early November.

Yarra Valley Cricket Association merged with the RDCA increasing our junior teams by 25. To minimise travel we introduced Yarra Valley grades for U/14s, U/12s and Mini Bash. Some of the high performing team within Yarra Valley were happy to integrate into RDCA grades. Overall, the merger from a junior perspective went very smoothly.

As recognition of the significant contribution made within the Yarra Valley Cricket Association juniors by Di Day and Keith Thompson, the following awards/grades have been named after them:

- Di Day Best Female Player
- U/12-5 Keith Thompson Shield

RDCA junior competition continues to grow even taking into account the Yarra Valley merger, grades increased from 24 to 33 and teams from 203 to 250.

This season we introduced stages (3) to the girl's competition, moving away from the traditional age groups. This allows girls to play in a team based on their ability and not their age. This season we had 5 grades and 31 teams, as compared to 3 and 23 respectively the previous season. The standard also continues to improve. This was very evident with our U/16 VMCU team winning our first girls' premiership.

We kicked off the season with Barefoot Indigenous round. At the end of each game, players formed a barefoot circle and a player read a statement about acknowledgement to country. We joined forces with Saxon Sports and with Mukti Australia (a Christian organisation for disadvantage woman and children) in sending cricket gear to Sri Lanka. Clubs and families supported us in dropping off second hand junior cricket equipment and clothing to Saxon Sports. Over 100kg of equipment was shipped over to Sri Lanka.

Due to COVID this season there was no T20 competition for U/16s, U/14s and U/12s and the Mini Bash junior carnival was also cancelled. However, we did introduce a U/18 T20 competition to allow junior players leaving the RDCA to still stay connected with their club. 8 teams joined this competition with Montrose and St Andrews playing a tie in the grand final.

The U/16 All Stars Teams has been renamed the Sean Flynn U/16 All Stars Team. Sean has been junior president for 7 years. In that time Sean has overseen an incredible growth in teams from 129 to 250, including the first ever girl's competition in season 16/17, that has now grown to 29 teams and 5 grades. He has also been the driving force behind introducing some significant changes, such as ball counts for retiring batsperson, reduced wicket length and player numbers for Mini Bash and U/12 lower grades. Sean has a great eye for identifying talent and has deep knowledge of individual player's past performances so it is fitingt to name an all stars team after him.

Congratulations to the following players who won awards for the season.

#### **BATTING AWARDS**

Grade	Player	Club	Runs	Ave
GS1 Stars	Kiara Torney	Croydon Ranges	124	

GS1 Spirit	Patience Donis	Warranwood	161	
GS2 Stars	Esther Semmens	St Andrews	123	123
GS2 Spirit	Briella Humphreys-Crouch	Blackburn	161	161
GS3	Keely Miutescu	Mt Evelyn	100	100
U/12-1	Jakey Pietz	Heatherdale	232	232
U/12-2	Lachlan Alderman	Seville Burras	285	143
U/12-3	Rishaan Sandhu	Nth Ringwood	226	226
U/12-4	Shantan RS	Bayswater Park	164	164
U/12-5	Darcy English	Healesville	251	251
U/12-6	Harper Sinclair	Mooroolbark	100	36.7
U/12-7	Joseph Harvey	Heatherdale	103	103
U/12-8	Harry West	Wonga Park	138	138
U/12-9	Callum Johnston	Warranwood	61	61
U/12-10	Benjamin Hunter	Seville Burras	89	89
U/14-1	Cooper Sticht	Croydon Ranges	300	100
U/14-2	Noah Habjan	Warrandyte	294	147
U/14-3	Tyson Darmody	Heathwood	178	89
U/14-4	Mason O'Neill	Hoddles Creek	268	134
U/14-5	Kavish Tailor	Koonung Heights	256	128
U/14-6	Kaden Baldock	Boronia	488	163
U/14-7	Lachlan Sund	Nth Ringwood	122	61
U/16-1	Max Parker	Norwood	256	42.6
U/16-2	Riley Weatherill	South Croydon	335	168
U/16-3	Billy Box	Heatherdale	254	63.5
U/16-4	Darren Dineshkumar	Glen Waverley	219	54.7
U/16-5	Josh Bernet	Norwood	166	83

# **BOWLING AWARDS**

Grade	Player	Club	W	Ave
GS1 Stars	Scarlett Capobianco	Heatherdale	7	4.7

GS1 Spirit	Hannah Robins	Warranwood	13	4.5
GS2 Stars	Emer Heffernan	Warrandyte	9	4.7
GS2 Spirit	Mikayla Lewis-Simmonds	North Ringwood	10	6.5
GS3	Jayde Reidy	Templeton	11	8.2
U/12-1	Charlie Moore	North Ringwood	11	4.7
U/12-2	Cooper Doughty	Lilydale	10	3.9
U/12-3	Oscar Cormack	South Croydon	13	5.9
U/12-4	Shantan RS	Bayswater Park	10	3.6
U/12-5	Darcy English	Healesville	8	5.6
U/12-6	Maxwell Hovey	Wonga Park	9	3.4
U/12-7	Oscar Williams	Templeton	10	3.8
U/12-8	Evan Koutsaplis	Mitcham	8	4.1
U/12-9	Avish Lakhani	Heatherdale	8	5.5
U/12-10	Ryder Crowe	Hoddles Creek	11	6.4
U/14-1	Reuben Natsis	Mitcham	13	8.6
U/14-2	Keaton Bottrell	Templeton	15	5.6
U/14-3	Tairon Ah-Mu	Wantirna Sth	14	6.7
U/14-4	Mason O'Neill	Hoddles Creek	15	4.7
U/14-4	George Lyons	Hoddles Creek	11	4.7
U/14-5	Mayank Patil	Scoresby	12	4.7
U/14-6	Jordyn Allen	St Andrews	10	7
U/14-6	Salil Gudup	Glen Waverley	12	7
U/14-7	Benjamin Excell	Warranwood	16	4.7
U/16-1	Mitchell O'Neil	Montrose	15	8.3
U/16-2	Ryan Thompson	Seville Burras	21	7.2
U/16-3	Cameron Baker	Wantirna Sth	13	8
U/16-4	Anagh Wadhwa	Glen Waverley	13	5.3
U/16-5	Ziggy Kneebone	Yarra Junction	14	5.9

Di Day Best Female Player – Sky Wilson Mt Evelyn

Andy Exley Umpire Award – Nick McKenzie

Bill Stafford Shield Club Champion - North Ringwood

Jeff Luscombe Volunteer of the Year – Darren Roe (North Ringwood) and Craig Buchan (Warranwood)

Sean Flynn U/16 A	All Stars Team 2020/21	Girls Stage 3 All Stars Team 20/21
Max Parker	Norwood	Sky Wilson Mount Evelyn
Daniel Roe	North Ringwood	Ameilia Kuth Launching Place
Riley Weatherill	South Croydon	Kamryn Disney Templeton
Bailey O'Riley	Norwood	Olivia Edwards (WK) Mount Evelyn
Luke Tully	Mitcham	Stella De Roos Heatherdale
Ryan Webster	East Ringwood	Jordyn Allen St Andrews
Cameron Storm	Montrose	Jayde Reidy Templeton
Mitchell O'Neil	Montrose	April Darkin Launching Place
Gabriel Lawson	Norwood	Lauren Barclay Heatherdale
Ryan Thompson	Seville Burras	Casey Giblin Mount Evelyn
Cody Anderson	Healesville	Keely Miutescu (C) Mount Evelyn
Riley Foley	Wonga Park	

Congratulations to our premiership winners.

Grade	Club	Grade	Club
U/16-1	Norwood	U/12-3	North Ringwood
U/16-2	Warrandyte	U/12-4	Warranwood
U/16-3	Blackburn	U/12-5	Healesville
U/16-4	South Warrandyte	U/12-6	Norwood
U/16-5	Yarra Junction/Coldstream	U/12-7	Templeton
U/14-1	Mitcham	U/12-8	Wonga Park
U/14-2	Warrandyte	U/12-9	Warranwood
U/14-3	Wantirna South	U/12-10	Woori Yallock
U/14-4	Hoddles Creek	Girls Stage 1 Stars	South Belgrave
U/14-5	Scoresby	Girls Stage 1 Spirit	Croydon Ranges
U/14-6	Glen Waverley	Girls Stage 2 Stars	North Ringwood
U/14-7	North Ringwood	Girls Stage 2 Spirit	Warranwood
U/12-1	North Ringwood	Girls Stage 3	Mt Evelyn
U/12-2	Ainslie Park		

Thankyou for all the support I received from our junior committee, Sean Flynn, Jas Harrison, Leah Parker, Luke Henderson, Sean Meehan, Doug Dowling, Cam Darwall and Steve Toohey, without your support this competition would not run as smooth as it does.

Finally, I would like to thank all our clubs for their support throughout what has been a very challenging year. Without their commitment to junior cricket, we would not have such a strong and viable competition as we do.

## Representative Coordinator - Bill Stafford

With the merger of Yarra Valley Cricket Association, the VMCU allowed us to enter extra teams in U/12 Josh Browne, U/14 Des Nolan and U/16 Keith Mackay. We also entered a team in the newly form U/18 girls grade, giving us a total of 14 teams.

COVID 19 may things difficult in delaying our selection process and also limiting the number of players that could attend trials and reduced the number of practice matches.

Overall, we had a very successful carnival:

- 7 teams made semi-finals (most ever)
- 3 teams (U/14 Russell Allen, U/16 Girls Mel Jones and U/16 Keith Mackay) won their semi final and went on to win the grand final (most ever)
- U/16 Mel Jones was our first girls VMCU premiership

#### Results of our semi-finals:

- U/12 Claudia Fatone- RDCA 78 Kaylen Tilney 27\* def by South East CA 7/83 Mineli Perera 4/11
- U/14 Des Nolan RDCA 7/195 (cc) Luke Ivanovic 60\* Oliver McKenzie 50 def by North West Metropolitan CA 7/196 Jake Ferris 4/24
- U/16 Jim Beitzel RDCA 118 Isaac Macklin 31, Daniel Meehan 27\* def by Inner South East 1/119
- U/18 Phil Arnold Inner South East 131 Braden Harvey 3/25, Ben Gill 2/5, Bailey Arnot 2/13 def RDCA 10/49
- U/14 Russell Allen RDCA 7/116 Lachie Quinn 38 def South East CA 10/115 Michain Premaratne 2/20, Callum Power 2/26
- U/16 Mel Jones RDCA 8/108 Hayley McLaughlin 31, Holly Gray 25 def South East CA 10/58 Hayley McLaughlin 22/7 Rosie Sykes 2/8 Lily Osborne 2/12
- U/16 Keith Mackay RDCA 3/169 Riley Foley 64 Cooper Williams 50 def Inner South East CA 6/167 Zac Cahill 2/24

#### Results of Grand Finals:

- U/14 Russell Allen Western Region Junior 10/174 Sam Montgomery 3/19, Reuben Parsons 2/28 Callum Power 2/44 def by RDCA 7/201 Archie Flynn 60\*, Lachie Quinn 36 Nat Reichman 29
- U/16 Mel Jones RDCA 5/153 Hayley McLaughlin 48\* Alex Sheedy 39 def North West Metropolitan CA 7/125 Lily Osborn 3/19 Keely Miutescu 2/25
- U/16 Keith Mackay -South East CA 174 Riley Wilkins 3/254 Luke Barr 3/26 Zac Cahill 2/33 def by RDCA 9/178 Riley Foley 33 Cooper Williams 31

For each team we award trophies for the Best Player of the Carnival and Coaches Award, winners were:

Team	Best Player	Coaches Award
U/18 Arnold	Jesse Lynn	Caleb Hrabe
u/16 Beitzel	Nathan Rodda	Max Sacristani
U/16 Mackay-1	Riley Foley	Ryan Webster
U/16 Mackay-2	Mitch O'Neil	Tom Edwards

u/14 Allen	Archie Flynn	Callum Power
U/14 Nolan-1	Elken Croydon	Luke Ivanovic
U/14 Nolan-2	Jack Childs	Mitchell Taylor
U/12 Mitchell	Taj Johnstone	Luke Spencer
U/12 Browne-1	George Lyons	Isaac Parsons
U/12 Browne-2	Cooper Flinn	Angus Younger
U/12 Claudia Fatone	Tiarna Mayoh	Hayley Wyngaard
U/14 Julie Savage	Tanya Arul	Ava Rebeiro
U/16 Mel Jones	Hayley McLaughlin	Holly Gray
U/18 Cathryn Fitzpatrick	Haylee Landi	Sky Wilson

Some other notable performances were:

Tanya Arul	U/14 Julie Savage Hat Trick V North West Metropolitan
Xavier Noonan	U/12 Mitchell Shield 6/16 v Dandenong District
Cohen Croft	U/16 Mackay-1 6/8 v North West Metropolitan
Archie Flynn	U/14 Russell Allen – Grand Final Player of the Match

We were very fortunate to have such a great group of coaches who were supported off field by well organised team managers. Our coaches and team managers were:

Team	Coach	Team Manager
U/12 Keith Mitchell	Clayton Henderson	Ricky Moore
U/12 Josh Browne 1	Will Maklin	Russell English
U/12 Josh Browne 2	Una Raymond-Hoey	Cam Darwell
U/14 Russell Allen	Dale Ingleton	Paul Montgomery
U/14 Des Nolan 1	Tom Humphries	Scott McKenzie
U/14 Des Nolan 2	Mitchell Thomas	Scott Luckhurst
U/16 Jim Beitzel	Jordan Roberts	Michelle Beaton
U/16 Keith Mackay 1	Declan McLaughlin	Bronwen Foley
U/16 Keith Mackay 2	Bailey Bowyer	Scott O'Neil
		Mark Glassborow
U/18 Phil Arnold	Nathan Lester	Joe Gill
U/12 Claudia Fatone	Maddy Mauchline	Glenn Wyngaard
U/14 Julie Savage	Sayali Abhyanjar	Lyle Carpenter
U/16 Mel Jones	Cassie Stephens	Paul Miutescu
		Dave Sykes
U/18 Cathryn Fitzpatrick	Netuli Perera	Steve Nichol

With so many teams we get great support from our clubs in nominating players and also providing grounds to host matches. Special thanks to Montrose CC, Lilydale CC, Chirnside Park CC, Kilsyth CC, Ringwood CC, Heathmont CC, Croydon CC, Bayswater Park CC, Wantirna South CC for making their grounds available.

Special thanks to Paull Attfield and Scott Brasher at Saxon Sports Croydon who provide first class indoor training facilities where we are able to run all our trials and training sessions.

# **VETERANS COMPETITION REPORT**

#### Chairman - Dave Sherlock

With the world changing by the week, day and month due to Covid 19, there have been a few challenges for the RDCA Veterans in Season 20/21.

The season start was already affected due to Covid 19 lockdown, this meant that we had to push the season back into March. Our priority was to try and play a full season (7 games) which meant that the season was modified (2 T20 games). (Veterans is usually finished before the Senior finals start.)

As the senior finals were only one day games, we were confident that it wouldn't impact our finals. Not to be.....

There were once again many wonderful individual and team achievements.

Masters 1 was once again a very strong competition.

Due to unfortunate scheduling issues a dual premiership between Warranwood Cricket Club and South Warrandyte Cricket Club was awarded.

Ladder	Points	Percentage
Warranwood	36	1.19
South Warrandyte	30	-0.13
Wonga Park1	24	-0.00
Warrandyte	24	-0.58
Lilydale	12	-0.94

**Masters 2** was also a very competitive season. Mooroolbark surprisingly beat highly fancied Croydon Ranges in the semi-final.

Woori Yallock proved far too strong for Mooroolbark in the Grand Final, taking out the premiership.

Woori Yallock 6/228 defeated Mooroolbark 5/170.

The game was played in the great Veterans Spirit, and was also a great spectacle that was attended by many people.

Ladder	Points	Percentage
Woori Yallock	39	1.25
Croydon Ranges	36	0.22
Mooroolbark	18	0.28
Wonga Park2	18	-0.01
South Croydon	9	-0.40
South Warrandyte2	6	-1.38

Due to Covid and time/fixturing restraints there were no Interleague games played this season.

#### **Dorset Gardens Veterans T20 Big Bash 3.**

This was our 3<sup>rd</sup> season of this competition. There were some very high scores in excess of 220+ runs in many games.

We had 20 teams enter this season made up of 2 pools of 20.

Once again, we had a few clubs from the BHRDCA, which love the format.

There was a great response from everyone and what turned out to be a fantastic success for players, spectators and clubs.

The Grand Final game was a bit of a letdown. Ainslie Park CC played in their first season of the competition taking on the undefeated in 3 seasons team of Warranwood CC.

The result was - Ainslie Park 4/84 defeated Warranwood 82

Thank You to Dave Raggett (RDCA Media/Radio) and Wayne Brasher (RDCA Radio) for giving up their time to commentate the grand final game.

Thank You to Jo Fairy (RDCA Sponsorship/Marketing) and Field of View for the wonderful photos.

Once again, a huge Thank you to our Major sponsor Dorset Gardens Hotel, we managed to get the Grand Final live streamed again.

We thank the many Sponsors of the RDCA for making this a great success and something for our Clubs and Members to look forward to each season.

I would especially like to thank my fellow Committee members for all their time, effort and support. Peter Chammings (Secretary), Murray Keen (MyCricket & Fixturing), Paul Jones (Committee).

Hopefully we can look forward to having a season that is not affected by Covid-19 so we can look forward to what is in store for the RDCA Veterans Competitions in 2021/2022 Season and beyond.

# STATISTICAL INFORMATION 2020/2021

# LINDSAY TROLLOPE SHIELD

Premiers: South Croydon CC

RANK	TEAM		P	W	L	D	Т	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	4	Montrose 1st XI	14	12	1	1	0	90	2130	107	1896	75	1.34
2	BULLS	North Ringwood 1st XI	14	9	4	1	0	69	2129	104	2063	57	1.56
3	25	South Croydon 1st XI	14	8	5	1	0	93	1986	107	1871	51	1.22
4	1	Ainslie Park 1st XI	14	7	5	1	1	96	1884	98	1974	48	0.97
5	ĕ	Wantirna South 1st XI	14	5	7	1	1	107	2295	101	2212	36	0.98
6	(N)	Mooroolbark 1st XI	14	5	8	1	0	95	1763	90	1848	33	0.90
7	<b>***</b>	Lilydale 1st XI	14	3	10	1	0	108	1771	92	1835	21	0.82
8	Ale:	Templeton 1st XI	14	2	11	1	0	111	2182	70	2441	15	0.56

DANK	TEAM		R1	Da	D2	D4	DE	De	D7	- D0	DO	D40	D44	D42	D42	D44	DOINTS
RANK	TEAM		KI	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	4	Montrose 1st XI	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	0	3	6	6	75
2	HAS.	North Ringwood 1st XI	6	0	0	6	6	6	6	0	0	6	6	3	6	6	57
3	20	South Croydon 1st XI	6	0	0	6	6	6	0	6	6	0	6	3	6	0	51
4	1	Ainslie Park 1st XI	6	6	6	6	6	3	0	6	0	0	0	3	6	0	48
5	ĕ	Wantirna South 1st XI	0	6	6	0	0	3	0	0	6	0	6	3	0	6	36
6	(S)	Mooroolbark 1st XI	0	6	0	0	0	0	6	0	6	6	6	3	0	0	33
7	9	Lilydale 1st XI	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	3	0	6	21
8	Sec.	Templeton 1st XI	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	6	0	3	0	0	15

#### Semi Finals

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM VENUE	
6 Mar 21	Montrose 1st XI 7/240(cc) R Schelfhout 80 Ja Crowe 71 K Perkins 43 RJ Peter-Budge 3/48 B Leis 2/42	North Ringwood 1st XI  def 9/166(cc) RJ Peter-Budge 44 A Leis 39 M Skinner Montrose Res 27* Ja Crowe 3/20 MJ Whittaker 3/33 D Dimitriou 2/13	erve
6 Mar 21	South Croydon 1st XI 2/229(cc) SA Brar 101* MR King 84*	def Ainslie Park 1st XI  141 J Bettess 37 R Smith 3/26 M Crozier 2/25  Cheong Park	

### **Preliminary Final**

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	7/173(cc) MJ Scott 60 L O'Donnell 27 M Crozier 2/14	South Croydon 1st XI 6/174 R Smith 67 MR King 47 M Skinner 3/26 MJ Scott 2/34	North Ringwood Reserve

#### **Grand Final**

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
20 Mar 21	Montrose 1st XI 165 R Schelfhout 36 K Perkins 34 M Edwards 28 RD Tattersall 5/25 M Crozier 2/30	def by	South Croydon 1st XI 8/191(cc) J Merrett 47 S Cogan 41 MR King 29 RD Tattersall 26* C van Koll 2/19 Ja Crowe 2/31 M McKane 2/32	Montrose Reserve

### **Batting Stars**

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Smith, Ryan	South Croydon Cricket Club	16	16	1	0	4	0	52	7	660	67	498	33.20	68.0
2	King, Michael R	South Croydon Cricket Club	16	15	3	0	2	0	32	18	626	84*	496	41.33	70.2
3	Perkins, Kieran	Montrose Cricket Club	15	15	2	0	3	1	47	0	752	83*	453	34.85	74.3
4	Smith, Cameron K	Wantirna South Cricket Club	13	13	1	1	2	0	50	1	848	102*	444	37.00	71.6
5	Leis, Aaron	North Ringwood Cricket Club	15	15	1	0	3	1	36	0	934	72*	441	31.50	54.4

	Runs	Player	Team	Season	Grade	Round	Inns	Opponent
1	144*	Troy J McGown	Wantirna South 1st XI	2020/2021	Lindsay Trollope Shield	3	1	Mooroolbark 1st XI
2	109*	Simon Young	Mooroolbark 1st XI	2020/2021	Lindsay Trollope Shield	11	1	Templeton 1st XI
3	102*	Cameron K Smith	Wantirna South 1st XI	2020/2021	Lindsay Trollope Shield	14	1	Templeton 1st XI
4	101*	Sameet A Brar	South Croydon 1st XI	2020/2021	Lindsay Trollope Shield	SF	1	Ainslie Park 1st XI

# **Bowling Stars**

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Ridgwell, Luke	North Ringwood Cricket Club	15	116.3	13	430	26	0	0	4/36	16.54	26.88	3.69
2	Tattersall, Rory D	South Croydon Cricket Club	16	98	11	419	24	1	0	5/25	17.46	24.50	4.28
3	Mckay, Drew	Wantirna South Cricket Club	13	102.1	12	362	23	0	0	3/24	15.74	26.65	3.54
4	Crozier, Mitchell	South Croydon Cricket Club	16	100.4	10	393	22	0	0	4/26	17.86	27.45	3.90
5	Smith, Ryan	South Croydon Cricket Club	16	123.1	18	446	22	0	0	3/16	20.27	33.59	3.62

Player	Team	Season	o	М	R	w	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1 Wayne Ross	Mooroolbark 1st XI	2020/2021	8	2	20	5	Lindsay Trollope Shield	2	1	Templeton 1st XI
2 Rory D Tattersall	South Croydon 1st XI	2020/2021	8	0	25	5	Lindsay Trollope Shield	GF	1	Montrose 1st XI
3 Caleb Webb	Wantirna South 1st XI	2020/2021	7	0	35	5	Lindsay Trollope Shield	4	1	South Croydon 1st XI

# **BILL WILKINS CUP**

Premiers: Norwood CC

_									-			
RANK	TEAM		P	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	2	Wonga Park 1st XI	14	10	3	1	95	2352	111	2038	63	1.35
2	<b>&gt;</b>	Norwood 1st XI	14	9	4	1	77	2057	112	2000	57	1.50
3	ER	East Ringwood 1st XI	14	8	5	1	91	2371	108	2041	51	1.38
4	*	Warranwood 1st XI	14	7	6	1	97	2354	98	2318	45	1.03
5		St Andrews 1st XI	14	7	6	1	99	2007	95	2087	45	0.92
6	4	Bayswater Park 1st XI	14	5	8	1	87	2056	91	1933	33	1.11
7	W	Warrandyte 1st XI	14	4	9	1	116	1715	83	1993	27	0.62
8	3	Croydon Ranges 1st XI	14	2	11	1	117	1935	81	2437	15	0.55

												-					
RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	9	Wonga Park 1st XI	0	6	6	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	0	3	6	6	63
2	4	Norwood 1st XI	6	0	6	6	0	6	6	6	0	6	6	3	0	6	57
3	ER	East Ringwood 1st XI	6	6	6	0	6	0	6	6	0	0	0	3	6	6	51
4	*	Warranwood 1st XI	6	0	6	0	0	0	6	6	6	6	6	3	0	0	45
5		St Andrews 1st XI	6	0	0	6	6	0	0	0	6	0	6	3	6	6	45
6	4	Bayswater Park 1st XI	0	6	0	0	6	6	0	0	0	6	0	3	6	0	33
7	W	Warrandyte 1st XI	0	6	0	6	0	6	0	6	0	0	0	3	0	0	27
8	3	Croydon Ranges 1st XI	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	0	6	3	0	0	15

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	East Ringwood 1st XI 5/177(cc) D Dempsey 78* T Gibson 42 M Mahy 2/44	def	Warranwood 1st XI 10/153 DA Johnson 31 S Nichol 3/18 I Delaney 2/16	East Ringwood Reserve (Oval #1)
6 Mar 21	Wonga Park 1st XI 159 JW Wigney 43 GJ McInerney 3/29 NM Lester 2/22 L Barber 2/29	def by	Norwood 1st XI 7/231(cc) NM Lester 82 BC Hastie 63 L Barber 28* J White 3/31 B White 2/45 SJ Mathews 2/48	Wonga Park Reserve (Oval #1)

## **Preliminary Final**

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Wonga Park 1st XI 8/191(cc) JW Wigney 54 B Osborne 53 S Nichol 4/46	East Ringwood 1st XI  of 190 D Collier 76 M Crowle 41 JW Wigney 3/17 J White 3/32  B White 2/37	Wonga Park Reserve (Oval #1)

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
20 Mar 21	Norwood 1st XI 5/152 NM Lester 69 S Storey 27* D Daniel 2/18	Wonga Park 1st XI  ef 9/151(cc) J Ford 33 GJ McInerney 4/43 G Lawson 2/20  NM Lester 2/32	Mullum Reserve (Main)

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Johnson, David A	Warranwood Cricket Club	14	14	1	0	6	2	44	26	326	93	554	42.62	128.2
2	Hastie, Ben C	Norwood Cricket Club	15	15	2	1	4	0	9	8	171	102	545	41.92	103.8
3	Gibson, Taylor	East Ringwood Cricket Club	13	13	4	0	4	0	18	2	310	90*	528	58.67	185.9
4	Osborne, Ben	Wonga Park Cricket Club	15	15	2	0	3	0	30	8	547	78	500	38.46	69.3
5	Storey, Sam	Norwood Cricket Club	15	13	3	0	3	0	14	0	340	96	466	46.60	69.1

	Runs	Player	Team	Season	Grade	Round	Inns	Opponent
1	129	Ben Mathews	Wonga Park 1st XI	2020/2021	Bill Wilkins Cup	14	1	Croydon Ranges 1st XI
2	102	Ben C Hastie	Norwood 1st XI	2020/2021	Bill Wilkins Cup	4	1	East Ringwood 1st XI

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	McInerney, Grant J	Norwood Cricket Club	15	110.3	8	437	33	0	0	4/21	13.24	20.09	3.95
2	Lester, Nathan M	Norwood Cricket Club	15	95.2	6	386	32	1	0	5/40	12.06	17.88	4.05
3	White, Ben	Wonga Park Cricket Club	16	106	7	529	29	1	0	5/44	18.24	21.93	4.99
4	Delaney, Caleb	East Ringwood Cricket Club	15	110	20	369	27	1	0	5/21	13.67	24.44	3.35
5	Daniel, Dylan	Wonga Park Cricket Club	16	110.5	11	444	22	0	0	4/23	20.18	30.23	4.01

1 Luke Barber         Norwood 1st XI         2020/2021         7.5         3         9         7         Bill Wilkins Cup         8         1         St Andrews 1st XI           2 Joshua Kazar         Bayswater Park 1st XI         2020/2021         8         1         23         6         Bill Wilkins Cup         6         1         St Andrews 1st XI           3 Jack Paynter         St Andrews 1st XI         2020/2021         7.3         1         24         6         Bill Wilkins Cup         13         1         Croydon Ranges 1s           4 David A Johnson         Warranwood 1st XI         2020/2021         8         0         25         6         Bill Wilkins Cup         9         1         Norwood 1st XI           5 Michael Mahy         Warranwood 1st XI         2020/2021         7.4         0         50         6         Bill Wilkins Cup         3         1         Warrandyte 1st XI           6 Caleb Delaney         East Ringwood 1st XI         2020/2021         7.2         1         21         5         Bill Wilkins Cup         3         1         St Andrews 1st XI	Player	r Team	Season	0	M	R	W	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
3 Jack Paynter St Andrews 1st XI 2020/2021 7.3 1 24 6 Bill Wilkins Cup 13 1 Croydon Ranges 1s 4 David A Johnson Warranwood 1st XI 2020/2021 8 0 25 6 Bill Wilkins Cup 9 1 Norwood 1st XI 5 Michael Mahy Warranwood 1st XI 2020/2021 7.4 0 50 6 Bill Wilkins Cup 3 1 Warrandyte 1st XI	1 Luke Barber	arber Norwood 1st XI	2020/2021	7.5	3	9	7	Bill Wilkins Cup	8	1	St Andrews 1st XI
4 David A Johnson Warranwood 1st XI 2020/2021 8 0 25 6 Bill Wilkins Cup 9 1 Norwood 1st XI 5 Michael Mahy Warranwood 1st XI 2020/2021 7.4 0 50 6 Bill Wilkins Cup 3 1 Warrandyte 1st XI	2 Joshua Kazar	Kazar Bayswater Park 1st XI	2020/2021	8	1	23	6	Bill Wilkins Cup	6	1	St Andrews 1st XI
5 Michael Mahy Warranwood 1st XI 2020/2021 7.4 0 50 6 Bill Wilkins Cup 3 1 Warrandyte 1st XI	3 Jack Paynter	aynter St Andrews 1st XI	2020/2021	7.3	1	24	6	Bill Wilkins Cup	13	1	Croydon Ranges 1st XI
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	4 David A Johnson	Johnson Warranwood 1st XI	2020/2021	8	0	25	6	Bill Wilkins Cup	9	1	Norwood 1st XI
6 Caleb Delaney East Ringwood 1st XI 2020/2021 7.2 1 21 5 Bill Wilkins Cup 3 1 St Andrews 1st XI	5 Michael Mahy	I Mahy Warranwood 1st XI	2020/2021	7.4	0	50	6	Bill Wilkins Cup	3	1	Warrandyte 1st XI
	6 Caleb Delaney	Delaney East Ringwood 1st XI	2020/2021	7.2	1	21	5	Bill Wilkins Cup	3	1	St Andrews 1st XI
7 Dylan Cuthbertson St Andrews 1st XI 2020/2021 8 0 31 5 Bill Wilkins Cup 2 1 Warrandyte 1st XI	7 Dylan Cuthbertson	Outhbertson St Andrews 1st XI	2020/2021	8	0	31	5	Bill Wilkins Cup	2	1	Warrandyte 1st XI
8 Nathan M Lester Norwood 1st XI 2020/2021 6.5 0 40 5 Bill Wilkins Cup 3 1 Croydon Ranges 1s	8 Nathan M Lester	M Lester Norwood 1st XI	2020/2021	6.5	0	40	5	Bill Wilkins Cup	3	1	Croydon Ranges 1st XI
9 Ben White Wonga Park 1st XI 2020/2021 8 0 44 5 Bill Wilkins Cup 8 1 Warrandyte 1st XI	9 Ben White	nite Wonga Park 1st XI	2020/2021	8	0	44	5	Bill Wilkins Cup	8	1	Warrandyte 1st XI

# STUART NEWEY PLATE

Premiers: Mt Evelyn CC

RANK	TEAM		Р	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1		Mount Evelyn 1st XI	14	10	3	1	80	2068	114	1971	63	1.50
2		Chirnside Park 1st XI	14	8	5	1	91	1976	108	1934	51	1.21
3	•	South Warrandyte 1st XI	14	7	6	1	109	2065	108	1817	45	1.13
4	18	Croydon North 1st XI	14	7	6	1	94	2291	97	2208	45	1.07
5		Seville 1st XI	14	7	6	1	93	1940	98	1989	45	1.03
6	*	Kilsyth 1st XI	14	6	7	1	90	1889	97	1844	39	1.10
7	<b>Ø</b>	Scoresby 1st XI	14	5	8	1	110	1851	104	2136	33	0.82
8	2	Yarra Junction 1st XI	14	2	11	1	125	1637	66	1818	15	0.48

RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1		Mount Evelyn 1st XI	6	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	6	6	0	3	6	0	63
2		Chirnside Park 1st XI	6	6	6	6	6	0	0	6	0	6	0	3	0	6	51
3	•	South Warrandyte 1st XI	6	6	0	0	0	6	0	0	6	6	6	3	6	0	45
4	18	Croydon North 1st XI	6	6	0	0	0	6	6	0	0	6	0	3	6	6	45
5		Seville 1st XI	0	0	6	0	0	6	6	6	6	0	0	3	6	6	45
6	*	Kilsyth 1st XI	0	0	0	6	6	6	0	0	6	0	6	3	0	6	39
7	<b>3</b>	Scoresby 1st XI	0	0	0	6	6	0	6	6	0	0	6	3	0	0	33
8	2	Yarra Junction 1st XI	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	3	0	0	15

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 S	08	48	68	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Findlay, Shane S	Croydon North Cricket Club	15	15	2	0	4	1	54	17	805	76*	528	40.62	71.4
2	Berman, Dulan C	Croydon North Cricket Club	15	15	4	0	3	1	43	13	453	87*	440	40.00	86.6
3	Jones, Kane	Mount Evelyn Cricket Club	15	15	3	0	4	2	31	24	379	84	428	35.67	162.7
4	Cosstick, Shane D	Chirnside Park Cricket Club	15	15	5	0	3	2	33	7	388	69*	427	42.70	51.3
5	Battaglene, Jayden	Chirnside Park Cricket Club	16	16	1	0	4	2	48	8	195	92	419	27.93	68.5

	Runs	Player	Team	Season	Grade	Round	Inns	Opponent
1	128	Andy Solomons	South Warrandyte 1st XI	2020/2021	Stuart Newey Plate	2	1	Seville 1st XI
2	101	Chris Noy	Croydon North 1st XI	2020/2021	Stuart Newey Plate	2	1	Yarra Junction 1st XI
3	101*	Matthew Clark	Kilsyth 1st XI	2020/2021	Stuart Newey Plate	8	1	Seville 1st XI

# **Bowling Stars**

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Ahmet, Karnel	Croydon North Cricket Club	15	101	8	516	31	0	0	4/30	16.65	19.55	5.11
2	Spencer, William J	Chirnside Park Cricket Club	15	90.3	13	414	28	0	0	4/24	14.79	19.39	4.57
3	Eranda, Amith	Scoresby Cricket Club	13	81.5	5	424	28	2	0	5/30	15.14	17.54	5.18
4	Tilney, Matthew	Seville Cricket Club (Seville Burras)	13	91.5	22	279	25	1	0	5/15	11.16	22.04	3.04
5	Singh, Harkanwal	Scoresby Cricket Club	13	94.3	6	354	24	1	0	5/17	14.75	23.63	3.75

·· ·- · -··

Player	Team	Season	0	M	R	W	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1 Kamal Kuruppu	South Warrandyte 1st XI	2020/2021	7.2	1	1	5	Stuart Newey Plate	9	1	Chirnside Park 1st XI
2 Matthew Tilney	Seville 1st XI	2020/2021	8	2	1	5	Stuart Newey Plate	14	1	Yarra Junction 1st XI
3 Harkanwal Singh	Scoresby 1st XI	2020/2021	8		1	5	Stuart Newey Plate	9	1	Seville 1st XI
4 Gareth Fraser	Mount Evelyn 1st XI	2020/2021	8	0	2	5	Stuart Newey Plate	GF	1	Chirnside Park 1st XI
5 Kane Jones	Mount Evelyn 1st XI	2020/2021	7	0	2	5	Stuart Newey Plate	14	1	Chirnside Park 1st XI
6 Shane D Cosstick	Chirnside Park 1st XI	2020/2021	5.2	0	2	5	Stuart Newey Plate	1	1	Yarra Junction 1st XI
7 Amith Eranda	Scoresby 1st XI	2020/2021	8	1	3	5	Stuart Newey Plate	3	1	Mount Evelyn 1st XI
8 Amith Eranda	Scoresby 1st XI	2020/2021	8	1	3	5	Stuart Newey Plate	1	1	Croydon North 1st XI

# STEVE PASCOE SHIELD

Premiers: Ainslie Park CC

RANK	TEAM		Р	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	1	Ainslie Park 2nd XI	14	12	1	1	81	1961	115	1813	75	1.54
2	4	Montrose 2nd XI	14	11	2	1	83	2426	119	1864	69	1.87
3		Healesville 1st XI	14	7	5	2	103	2021	96	1738	48	1.08
4		Woori Yallock 1st XI	14	6	7	1	105	1915	110	1880	39	1.07
5	20	South Croydon 2nd XI	14	5	8	1	100	1845	103	1734	33	1.10
6	ĕ	Wantirna South 2nd XI	14	5	8	1	112	2118	82	2567	33	0.60
7	92	Wandin 1st XI	14	3	9	2	118	2012	97	2442	24	0.68
8	[magazine]	Eastfield 1st XI	14	2	11	1	123	1960	103	2220	15	0.74

RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	1	Ainslie Park 2nd XI	6	6	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	6	6	3	6	6	75
2	4	Montrose 2nd XI	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	6	3	6	0	69
3		Healesville 1st XI	6	0	6	3	0	0	6	0	0	6	6	3	6	6	48
4		Woori Yallock 1st XI	0	0	0	0	6	6	6	6	0	0	6	3	0	6	39
5	20	South Croydon 2nd XI	0	0	0	6	6	0	6	0	6	0	0	3	0	6	33
6	Ø.	Wantirna South 2nd XI	6	6	6	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	3	6	0	33
7	92	Wandin 1st XI	0	0	0	3	0	6	0	0	6	6	0	3	0	0	24
8	and the same of	Eastfield 1st XI	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	3	0	0	15

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	Ainslie Park 2nd XI 8/112 T Sier 53* D Crowe 2/14 T Sonsini 2/26 C Grigg 2/33	def	Montrose 2nd XI 111 L Grigg 31 J Hunter 4/20 D Allan 3/15 T Sier 2/12	Ainslie Park
6 Mar 21	Healesville 1st XI 8/166(cc) A HAMER 49 B D'AMORE 28 J Young 4/18 P Broussard 2/36	def	Woori Yallock 1st XI 128 H Smith 39 K Cantwell 28 J Poynton 3/21 C Burridge 2/10	Queens Park (Healesville)

## **Preliminary Final**

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Montrose 2nd XI 7/186(cc) L Grigg 53 B Podesta 33 M Stella 27 D Senior 3/27	def Healesville 1st XI 7/156(cc) L Daly 34 D Crowe 3/23	Montrose Reserve

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
20 Mar 21	Ainslie Park 2nd XI 6/169(cc) N Croot 56 SR Minetti 36*	Montrose 2nd XI def 6/168(cc) SJ Gebert 61 J Bromiley 28 M Stella 28 D Allan 3/28	Ainslie Park

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Sier, Trent	Ainslie Park Cricket Club	15	15	3	0	4	0	4	2	189	79	485	40.42	346.4
2	Stella, Matthew	Montrose Cricket Club	16	15	3	0	4	1	43	1	547	75*	457	38.08	68.0
3	Minney, Mark	Healesville Cricket Club	14	14	2	0	5	0	32	0		77	453	37.75	271.3
4	Hyndman, Danny	Woori Yallock Cricket Club	14	14	1	0	2	1	37	3	377	60	432	33.23	154.3
5	HAMER, Ash	Healesville Cricket Club	14	13	0	0	2	0	28	3		71	360	27.69	692.3

	Runs	Player	Team	Season	Grade	Round	Inns	Opponent
1	106*	Joshua Bromiley	Montrose 2nd XI	2020/2021	Steve Pascoe Shield	13	1	Eastfield 1st XI
2	104*	Sam D Barnes	Wantirna South 2nd XI	2020/2021	Steve Pascoe Shield	13	1	South Croydon 2nd XI

#### **Bowling Stars**

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	W	5WI	10WM	вві	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Crowe, Daniel	Montrose Cricket Club	14	96.2	13	335	27	1	0	5/11	12.41	21.41	3.48
2	Peiris, Lakpriya M	Eastfield Cricket Club	13	88.4	14	332	24	1	0	5/12	13.83	22.17	3.74
3	Young, Jason	Woori Yallock Cricket Club	14	87.2	6	328	23	0	0	4/15	14.26	22.78	3.76
4	Sonsini, Tyler	Montrose Cricket Club	15	109.5	14	390	22	0	0	3/16	17.73	29.95	3.55
5	Hunter, James	Ainslie Park Cricket Club	9	64.1	9	227	21	0	0	4/14	10.81	18.33	3.54
		Western Ostalia October											

Season O M R W Grade **Round Innings Opponent** Player Team 1 Carl Morgan Woori Yallock 1st XI 2020/2021 6.5 0 3.. 6 Steve Pascoe Shield Montrose 2nd XI 2 Michael DAVERN Healesville 1st XI 2020/2021 6.5 4.. 6 Steve Pascoe Shield Eastfield 1st XI 11 1 2020/2021 7 2 11 5 Steve Pascoe Shield 3 Daniel Crowe Montrose 2nd XI 11 1 Wandin 1st XI 4 Lakpriya M Peiris Eastfield 1st XI 2020/2021 7 3 1.. 5 Steve Pascoe Shield Woori Yallock 1st XI 1 5 Allan Pearce Healesville 1st XI 2020/2021 7.2 2 1.. 5 Steve Pascoe Shield 13 1 Wandin 1st XI 6 Samuel Hennessey South Croydon 2nd XI 2020/2021 6.4 1 2.. 5 Steve Pascoe Shield 4 Wantirna South 2nd XI 1 7 Kunaal Chandra Wantirna South 2nd XI 2020/2021 8 0 3.. 5 Steve Pascoe Shield 14 Healesville 1st XI 1

# PAT MEEHAN SHIELD

**Premiers**: South Warrandyte Hawks CC

RANK	TEAM		P	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	9	Heathwood 1st XI	14	10	3	1	100	2022	107	1714	63	1.26
2	•	South Warrandyte Hawks 2nd XI	14	9	4	1	97	2199	109	1841	57	1.34
3	<b>B</b>	North Ringwood 2nd XI	14	7	6	1	82	2066	101	1949	45	1.31
4	*	Warranwood 2nd XI	14	7	6	1	94	2098	93	1893	45	1.10
5	TEV.	Warrandyte 2nd XI	14	7	6	1	105	2033	111	2025	45	1.06
6	ER	East Ringwood 2nd XI	14	7	6	1	89	1783	100	1894	45	1.06
7	*	Kilsyth 2nd XI	14	6	7	1	101	1957	90	2034	39	0.86
8	þ	Norwood 2nd XI	14	6	7	1	111	1882	102	2034	39	0.85
9	9	Lilydale 2nd XI	14	3	10	1	108	1842	95	2158	21	0.75
10	4	Bayswater Park 2nd XI	14	3	10	1	107	1714	86	2054	21	0.67

RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	9	Heathwood 1st XI	6	6	6	6	6	0	0	6	6	6	0	3	6	6	63
2	•	South Warrandyte Hawks 2nd XI	0	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	0	0	6	3	6	0	57
3	BULLS	North Ringwood 2nd XI	0	0	0	6	0	6	0	6	6	0	6	3	6	6	45
4	*	Warranwood 2nd XI	0	6	0	6	6	0	6	0	0	0	6	3	6	6	45
5	W	Warrandyte 2nd XI	6	0	6	0	6	0	6	0	0	6	6	3	0	6	45
6	ER	East Ringwood 2nd XI	6	0	6	0	6	6	0	0	6	6	6	3	0	0	45
7	*	Kilsyth 2nd XI	0	0	0	0	0	6	6	6	6	6	0	3	6	0	39
8	<b>&gt;</b>	Norwood 2nd XI	6	6	6	0	0	6	6	0	6	0	0	3	0	0	39
9	<b>3</b>	Lilydale 2nd XI	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	0	3	0	6	21
10	1	Bayswater Park 2nd XI	0	6	0	6	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	3	0	0	21

### **Preliminary Finals**

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	North Ringwood 2nd XI 5/182(cc) D Roe 70 M Stoikos 30 DL Turner 3/27	def by	Warranwood 2nd XI 9/185 T Keyhoe 46 A Houghton 34 S Ridgwell 5/22 L Sweeney 2/47	North Ringwood Reserve
6 Mar 21	Heathwood 1st XI 4/84 R Cranmer 45* D Harris 3/17	def	South Warrandyte Hawks 2nd XI 83 J Livingstone 39 C Deidun 2/7 G Oakley 2/8 R Gordon 2/17	Heathmont Reserve

### Semi Final

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	South Warrandyte Hawks 2nd XI 7/176(cc) AG Weeramantry 49 J Livingstone 27 DL Turner de 2/26	Warranwood 2nd XI ef 148 A Spittle 26 A Mastroianni 26 S McMahon 4/29 S Musavi 2/17 J Emery 2/41	Colman Park

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM VENUE	
20 Mar 21	Heathwood 1st XI 8/191(cc) R Cranmer 78* BZ Gordon 33 K Murtaza 2/26	South Warrandyte Hawks 2nd XI 8/195 F Day 61 S McMahon 35 B Gordon 3/39 C Deidun Heathmont Reserv 2/32	•

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Roe, Daniel	North Ringwood Cricket Club	14	14	2	0	3	2	5	0	105	94	395	32.92	369.2
2	Redfern, Brendan	North Ringwood Cricket Club	13	13	2	0	3	1	5	0	37	71*	348	31.64	370.2
3	Deidun, Christopher	Heathwood Cricket Club	15	15	1	0	1	1	28	0	16	69	339	24.21	38.3
4	Price, Alastair	South Warrandyte Hawks Cricket Club	14	14	0	0	1	0	1	0	50	53	312	22.29	195.0
5	Johnson, Luke	Warranwood Cricket Club	14	14	0	0	1	2	30	0	329	67	302	21.57	63.8

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	W	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Deidun, Christopher	Heathwood Cricket Club	15	90.2	18	258	26	1	0	6/12	9.92	20.85	2.86
2	Warren, Luke	Warrandyte Cricket Club	13	89	11	341	25	0	0	4/41	13.64	21.36	3.83
3	Ridgwell, Sam	North Ringwood Cricket Club	13	96.4	16	288	22	1	0	5/22	13.09	26.36	2.98
4	Tua, Isaac	Warrandyte Cricket Club	12	61.3	8	231	20	1	0	5/15	11.55	18.45	3.76
5	Lawson, Charlie	Norwood Cricket Club	10	72.2	11	296	20	0	0	3/22	14.80	21.70	4.09

Player	Team	Season	0	M	R	W	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1 Christopher Deidun	Heathwood 1st XI	2020/2021	7.2	1	12	6	Pat Meehan Shield	2	1	Warrandyte 2nd XI
2 Isaac Tua	Warrandyte 2nd XI	2020/2021	8	3	15	5	Pat Meehan Shield	11	1	Heathwood 1st XI
3 Matthew Lockie	Bayswater Park 2nd XI	2020/2021	8	0	20	5	Pat Meehan Shield	8	1	Warranwood 2nd XI
4 Sam Ridgwell	North Ringwood 2nd XI	2020/2021	8	1	22	5	Pat Meehan Shield	SF	1	Warranwood 2nd XI

# IAN SPENCER SHIELD

Premiers: Wonga Park CC

RANK	TEAM		P	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	2	Wonga Park 2nd XI	14	11	2	1	72	1870	114	1659	69	1.78
2		Mount Evelyn 2nd XI	14	10	3	1	82	2104	101	1881	63	1.38
3	<u> (N</u>	Mooroolbark 2nd XI	14	8	5	1	97	1882	90	2033	51	0.86
4	1	Croydon Ranges 2nd XI	14	6	7	1	94	1883	97	1755	39	1.11
5	• Macding	Wantirna 1st XI	14	6	7	1	90	2079	87	2109	39	0.95
6		Chirnside Park 2nd XI	14	5	8	1	105	1730	92	1909	33	0.79
7	M <sub>C</sub>	Templeton 2nd XI	14	4	9	1	102	1860	89	1852	27	0.88
8	1	Croydon North 2nd XI	14	2	11	1	111	1775	83	1985	15	0.67

RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	2	Wonga Park 2nd XI	6	0	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	3	0	6	69
2		Mount Evelyn 2nd XI	6	6	6	0	6	6	6	6	6	6	0	3	0	6	63
3	<u> </u>	Mooroolbark 2nd XI	0	6	6	6	0	6	6	0	6	0	6	3	6	0	51
4	3.	Croydon Ranges 2nd XI	6	0	0	6	0	0	0	6	0	6	6	3	6	0	39
5	<ul> <li>Mactions</li> </ul>	Wantirna 1st XI	6	0	0	6	6	0	0	0	0	0	6	3	6	6	39
6		Chirnside Park 2nd XI	0	6	0	0	6	6	0	6	0	6	0	3	0	0	33
7	Mg.	Templeton 2nd XI	0	0	6	0	0	0	6	0	6	0	0	3	0	6	27
8	18	Croydon North 2nd XI	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	6	0	15

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	Wonga Park 2nd XI 9/205(cc) J Ford 60 MA Williamson 27 AM Giblin 2/21 C DOYLE 2/34 LM Shepherd 2/38	def	Mount Evelyn 2nd XI 9/201(cc) C DOYLE 43 B Westaway 36 MA Williamson 3/36 T McKinney 2/46	Warrandyte Reserve (Oval 1)
6 Mar 21	Mooroolbark 2nd XI 8/149 S Kelton 30 J Woodford 30 J Beaton 3/30 M Low 2/21	def	Croydon Ranges 2nd XI 6/148(cc) MT Steiniger 66* CM Denavi 28	Mooroolbark Heights Reserve

### **Preliminary Final**

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Mount Evelyn 2nd XI 9/211 D Kift 50 A Brisbane-Flynn 39 LM Shepherd 38* D Finch 25 S Kelton 3/42 M Neal 2/38 T Murphy 2/39	def Mooroolbark 2nd XI 4/210(cc) J Woodford 64* S Kelton 50 A Marsi	Mount Evelyn Reserve (Gary h 30 Martin (South))

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
20 Mar 21	Wonga Park 2nd XI  152 MA Williamson 49 CJ Atkinson 39 S Laurie-Sanders 6/28 CJ Anderson 3/19	Mount Evelyn 2nd XI  def 10/146 MA Williamson 5/30 T McKinney 3/3	Wonga Park Reserve (Oval 30 #1)

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 S	08	48	68	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Allen, Chris	Wantirna Cricket Club	12	12	4	0	4	0	6	2	81	65	493	61.63	835.6
2	Brar, Armaan	Wantirna Cricket Club	12	12	2	0	3	0	6	0	169	96*	476	47.60	377.8
3	Westaway, Darren M	Mount Evelyn Cricket Club	16	16	0	0	1	1	42	0	956	79	436	27.25	60.4
4	Kelton, Shane	Mooroolbark Cricket Club	8	8	0	1	1	0	32	8	471	117	339	42.38	93.9
5	Giblin, Andrew M	Mount Evelyn Cricket Club	16	16	3	0	2	1	26	4	553	67*	312	24.00	77.2

	Runs	Player	Team	Season	Grade	Round	Inns	Opponent
1	117	Shane Kelton	Mooroolbark 2nd XI	2020/2021	Ian Spencer Shield	9	1	Croydon Ranges 2nd XI

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Williamson, Michael A	Wonga Park Cricket Club	14	103	9	352	33	1	0	5/30	10.67	18.73	3.42
2	Brar, Armaan	Wantirna Cricket Club	12	88.3	6	334	23	2	0	5/18	14.52	23.09	3.77
3	McKinney, Tom	Wonga Park Cricket Club	14	88	11	325	21	1	0	5/20	15.48	25.14	3.69
4	Johnson, Nicholas	Wonga Park Cricket Club	15	85	14	289	20	0	0	4/29	14.45	25.50	3.40
5	Neal, Matt	Mooroolbark Cricket Club	14	103	7	316	19	0	0	2/12	16.63	32.53	3.07

Player	Team	Season	o	M	R	w	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1 Stephen Laurie-San	Mount Evelyn 2nd XI	2020/2	8	1	2	6	Ian Spencer Shi	GF	1	Wonga Park 2nd XI
2 Christopher M Denavi	Croydon Ranges 2n	2020/2	6.2		1	5	Ian Spencer Shi	11	1	Chirnside Park 2nd XI
3 Armaan Brar	Wantirna 1st XI	2020/2	5.5	0	1	5	Ian Spencer Shi	5	1	Croydon Ranges 2n
4 Tom McKinney	Wonga Park 2nd XI	2020/2	7	1	2	5	Ian Spencer Shi	2	1	Mount Evelyn 2nd XI
5 Jack Vanraay	Mount Evelyn 2nd XI	2020/2	8	1	2	5	lan Spencer Shi	6	1	Croydon North 2nd XI
6 Armaan Brar	Wantirna 1st XI	2020/2	8	2	2	5	Ian Spencer Shi	11	1	Croydon North 2nd XI
7 Jack Hollins	Chirnside Park 2nd XI	2020/2	7	1	2	5	Ian Spencer Shi	5	1	Croydon North 2nd XI
8 Michael A Williamson	Wonga Park 2nd XI	2020/2	7.5	0	3	5	lan Spencer Shi	GF	1	Mount Evelyn 2nd XI
9 Jon Dalton	Mount Evelyn 2nd XI	2020/2	6	0	4	5	Ian Spencer Shi	13	1	Wantirna 1st XI

# "A" GRADE – DAVID BEATTY SHIELD

Premiers: Montrose CC

										*	-		
RANK	TEAM		P	W	L	D	T	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	4	Montrose 3rd XI	14	12	1	1	0	60	1971	112	1859	75	1.98
2		Seville 2nd XI	14	8	3	2	1	73	1931	104	1745	57	1.58
3		St Andrews 2nd XI	14	9	4	1	0	96	2188	89	1905	57	1.06
4	BUS	North Ringwood 3rd XI	14	8	5	1	0	75	2026	91	2090	51	1.18
5	W	Warrandyte 3rd XI	14	7	4	2	1	96	2158	95	2003	51	1.07
6	ĕ	Wantirna South 3rd XI	14	3	10	1	0	87	1880	76	2019	21	0.81
7	190	Ainslie Park 3rd XI	14	2	11	1	0	103	1780	65	1953	15	0.58
8	<b>**</b>	Lilydale 3rd XI	14	1	12	1	0	116	1880	74	2240	9	0.54

-									*				-	•			
RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	<b>P</b>	Montrose 3rd XI	6	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	6	6	6	3	6	6	75
2		Seville 2nd XI	3	6	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	3	0	3	6	0	57
3		St Andrews 2nd XI	6	0	0	6	0	6	0	6	6	6	6	3	6	6	57
4	BUS	North Ringwood 3rd XI	6	0	0	6	6	0	6	6	6	6	0	3	6	0	51
5	CT.	Warrandyte 3rd XI	3	6	6	0	6	6	6	0	0	3	6	3	0	6	51
6	Ø.	Wantirna South 3rd XI	0	6	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	3	0	6	21
7	1	Ainslie Park 3rd XI	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	3	0	0	15
8	<b>**</b>	Lilydale 3rd XI	0	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	9

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	Montrose 3rd XI 3/130 B Podesta 55 N Brisbane 51* M Hepburn 2/9	def	North Ringwood 3rd XI 126 M Ayton 26 A Wellington 3/16 B Podesta 2/15 B Harvey 2/23 HM Nyhuis 2/26	Keith Hume Fraser Reserve (Oval 1 - South)
6 Mar 21	Seville 2nd XI 146 R Foster 33 J Sharp 25 V Premaratne 4/46 S Milton 2/35	def by	St Andrews 2nd XI 2/150 M Sutherland 86 S Wong 34*	Seville Recreation Reserve (South Oval #1)

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Montrose 3rd XI 9/199(cc) CJ Ratcliffe 47 CL Storm 28 J Mastronardi 26 V Premaratne 3/43 A Stephen 2/53	def	St Andrews 2nd XI 10/183 R Trowsdale 67 D Valji 29 J Motteram 5/39 A Wellington 2/35	Keith Hume Fraser Reserve (Oval 1 - South)

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Sutherland, Matt	St Andrews (RDCA) Cricket Club	11	11	0	0	5	0	73	8	32	86	504	45.82	416.5
2	Lindeman-Collins, Joel	Montrose Cricket Club	15	14	2	1	2	3	47	14	22	117	381	31.75	692.7
3	Razdan, Mark	North Ringwood Cricket Club	13	13	1	0	1	2				58*	341	28.42	
4	McGookin, Liam	Seville Cricket Club (Seville Burras)	12	12	2	1	1	1	0	0	9	102*	337	33.70	4212.5
5	Francis, Mark	Ainslie Park Cricket Club	12	11	0	0	2	1				94	337	30.64	

. . . . . . . . . . . . .

	Runs	Player	Team	Season	Grade	Round	Inns	Opponent
1	117	Joel Lindeman-Collins	Montrose 3rd XI	2020/2021	A Grade (David Beatty Shield)	5	1	Wantirna South 3rd XI
2	102*	Liam McGookin	Seville 2nd XI	2020/2021	A Grade (David Beatty Shield)	8	1	Lilydale 3rd XI

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	М	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Stafford, Brandon	Warrandyte Cricket Club	12	67.2	9	320	26	1	0	6/28	12.31	15.54	4.75
2	Motteram, Jake	Montrose Cricket Club	15	84.1	8	328	22	1	0	5/39	14.91	22.95	3.90
3	Premaratne, Vijain	St Andrews (RDCA) Cricket Club	10	69.2	7	300	20	0	0	4/46	15.00	20.80	4.33
4	Storm, Cameron L	Montrose Cricket Club	9	61	5	255	18	0	0	4/29	14.17	20.33	4.18
5	Prouse, Rowan	Seville Cricket Club (Seville Burras)	12	73	5	271	18	0	0	4/17	15.06	24.33	3.71

Player	Team	Season	0	M	R	w	Grade	Rounc	Innings	Opponent
1 Riley Foster	Seville 2nd XI	2020/2	7.4	1	2	7	A Grade (David Beatty Shi	13	1	Ainslie Park 3rd XI
2 Brandon Stafford	Warrandyte 3rd XI	2020/2	8	1	2	6	A Grade (David Beatty Shi	5	1	St Andrews 2nd XI
3 Alex Simmons	North Ringwood 3rd	2020/2	7		4	6	A Grade (David Beatty Shi	9	1	Warrandyte 3rd XI
4 Jake Motteram	Montrose 3rd XI	2020/2	7.3	0	3	5	A Grade (David Beatty Shi	GF	1	St Andrews 2nd XI
5 Luke Hannema	North Ringwood 3rd	2020/2	7.5		5	5	A Grade (David Beatty Shi	6	1	Warrandyte 3rd XI

# "B" GRADE – DON SMITH SHIELD

Premiers: Yarra Junction CC

_									-		-	
RANK	TEAM		P	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	2	Yarra Junction 2nd XI	14	10	2	2	77	1836	103	1602	66	1.53
2	ER	East Ringwood 3rd XI	14	9	4	1	77	2038	101	2036	57	1.31
3	4	Montrose 4th XI	14	8	5	1	79	2011	100	1985	51	1.28
4	3.	Croydon Ranges 3rd XI	14	8	5	1	84	1933	104	2071	51	1.16
5	2	Wonga Park 3rd XI	14	7	6	1	103	2262	108	1977	45	1.20
6	BULLS	North Ringwood 4th XI	14	5	7	2	84	1842	75	1892	36	0.87
7		St Andrews 3rd XI	14	4	9	1	98	1974	83	2042	27	0.82
8	integral	Eastfield 2nd XI	14	0	13	1	126	1685	54	1976	3	0.37

RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	2	Yarra Junction 2nd XI	6	6	6	6	6	0	6	3	6	6	0	3	6	6	66
2	<b>€</b> ₹	East Ringwood 3rd XI	6	6	0	6	0	6	6	0	0	6	6	3	6	6	57
3	<b>3</b>	Montrose 4th XI	0	6	6	6	0	0	6	6	0	0	6	3	6	6	51
4	3.	Croydon Ranges 3rd XI	0	6	0	6	6	6	0	6	6	0	6	3	0	6	51
5	9	Wonga Park 3rd XI	0	0	6	0	6	6	6	0	6	6	6	3	0	0	45
6	BUS	North Ringwood 4th XI	6	0	6	0	0	6	0	3	6	0	0	3	6	0	36
7		St Andrews 3rd XI	6	0	0	0	6	0	0	6	0	6	0	3	0	0	27
8	(magazine)	Eastfield 2nd XI	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	3

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	East Ringwood 3rd XI 2/136 JR Schickerling 79 C Richardson 36	def	Montrose 4th XI  130 ML O'Neil 34 M Smith 30 JA Hartman 27 C Richardson 3/30 J Llewellyn 2/10 G Peters 2/18 B Singh Brar 2/23	East Ringwood Reserve (Fred Hodgkins Oval)
6 Mar 21	Yarra Junction 2nd XI 1/66(cc) M Robinson 29* M Kocher 26*	def	Croydon Ranges 3rd XI 64 A Mills 28 T Ottrey 3/0 A Davis 3/14 AP Gelly 3/26	Yarra Junction Reserve

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Yarra Junction 2nd XI 7/138(cc) M Kocher 65* A Davis 29 J Llewellyn 3/23	East Ringwood 3rd XI  def 134 C Crozier 30 JR Schickerling 26 T Ottrey 5/19 M Lord 3/27 AP Gelly 2/30	Yarra Junction Reserve

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 S	08	48	68	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	White, Justin	Wonga Park Cricket Club	13	13	0	0	4	1				75	428	32.92	407.6
2	Schulties, Rohan	Croydon Ranges Cricket Club	14	13	3	1	1	1	52	11	77	123*	391	39.10	202.6
3	Whitty, Dan	North Ringwood Cricket Club	12	12	2	0	3	1	0	0		95*	367	36.70	18350.0
4	Carratelli, Daniel	Montrose Cricket Club	13	12	2	1	1	0	41	15	20	119	364	36.40	2275.0
5	Kocher, Marcel	Yarra Junction Cricket Club	8	8	2	1	2	1	9	1	240	116	302	50.33	167.8

, , , ,		Runs	Player	Team	Season	Grade	Round	Inns	Opponent
3 119 Daniel Carratelli Montrose 4th XI 2020/2021 B Grade (Don Smith Shield) 8 1 Wonga Park 3rd XI	1	152	Lachlan Thompson	Yarra Junction 2nd XI	2020/2021	B Grade (Don Smith Shield)	9	1	East Ringwood 3rd XI
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	2	123*	Rohan Schulties	Croydon Ranges 3rd XI	2020/2021	B Grade (Don Smith Shield)	4	1	North Ringwood 4th XI
4 116 Marcel Kocher Yarra Junction 2nd XI 2020/2021 B Grade (Don Smith Shield) 1 1 Montrose 4th XI	3	119	Daniel Carratelli	Montrose 4th XI	2020/2021	B Grade (Don Smith Shield)	8	1	Wonga Park 3rd XI
	4	116	Marcel Kocher	Yarra Junction 2nd XI	2020/2021	B Grade (Don Smith Shield)	1	1	Montrose 4th XI

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Peters, Gary	East Ringwood Cricket Club	15	110.4	16	341	27	0	0	4/11	12.63	24.59	3.08
2	Ottrey, Terry	Yarra Junction Cricket Club	12	72.4	14	250	24	1	0	5/19	10.42	18.17	3.44
3	Singh Brar, Baljinder	East Ringwood Cricket Club	15	95.5	1	339	21	1	0	5/30	16.14	27.38	3.54
4	Hayhurst, Mark	Montrose Cricket Club	14	63	11	248	20	0	0	4/12	12.40	18.90	3.94
5	White, Bailey D	Montrose Cricket Club	12	58.5	4	328	20	1	0	6/46	16.40	17.65	5.58

Player	Team	Season	0	M	R	W	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1 Nick Bark	Yarra Junction 2n	2020/2	8	0	17	6	B Grade (Don Smith Shi	4	1	Eastfield 2nd XI
2 Vijain Premaratne	St Andrews 3rd XI	2020/2	8	2	32	6	B Grade (Don Smith Shi	3	1	Wonga Park 3rd XI
3 Bailey D White	Montrose 4th XI	2020/2	7		46	6	B Grade (Don Smith Shi	8	1	Wonga Park 3rd XI
4 Terry Ottrey	Yarra Junction 2n	2020/2	7	3	19	5	B Grade (Don Smith Shi	GF	1	East Ringwood 3r
5 Ethan E Lovell	Wonga Park 3rd XI	2020/2	8	0	22	5	B Grade (Don Smith Shi	3	1	St Andrews 3rd XI
6 Baljinder Singh	East Ringwood 3r	2020/2	7		30	5	B Grade (Don Smith Shi	13	1	Wonga Park 3rd XI
7 Daniel R Schlueter	Wonga Park 3rd XI	2020/2	8	0	35	5	B Grade (Don Smith Shi	4	1	East Ringwood 3r

# "C" GRADE – JOHN SPRINGETT SHIELD

Premiers: Healesville CC

_											_		-
RANK	TEAM		P	W	L	D	T	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	4	Norwood 3rd XI	14	11	2	1	0	79	2324	111	1996	69	1.64
2		Healesville 2nd XI	14	10	3	1	0	77	2086	118	1805	63	1.77
3	4	Bayswater Park 3rd XI	14	8	5	1	0	83	1815	96	1935	51	1.08
4	***	Warranwood 3rd XI	14	7	6	1	0	88	2088	96	1972	45	1.16
5	*	Kilsyth 3rd XI	14	6	7	1	0	103	1977	85	1985	39	0.82
6	20	South Croydon 3rd XI	14	5	8	1	0	107	1898	94	2064	33	0.81
7	(N)	Mooroolbark 3rd XI	14	2	10	1	1	107	2218	94	2442	18	0.80
8	1	Scoresby 2nd XI	14	2	10	1	1	119	1938	69	2145	18	0.52

_										•			-	•			
RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	<b>&gt;</b>	Norwood 3rd XI	6	6	6	0	6	0	6	6	6	6	6	3	6	6	69
2		Healesville 2nd XI	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	0	0	0	6	3	6	6	63
3	4	Bayswater Park 3rd XI	0	6	0	6	0	6	6	0	6	6	0	3	6	6	51
4	*	Warranwood 3rd XI	6	0	6	0	0	6	0	6	6	6	6	3	0	0	45
5	*	Kilsyth 3rd XI	0	0	6	6	6	0	0	6	6	0	0	3	0	6	39
6	20	South Croydon 3rd XI	0	0	0	6	6	0	6	6	0	0	0	3	6	0	33
7	(M)	Mooroolbark 3rd XI	6	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	3	0	3	0	0	18
8	<b>Ø</b>	Scoresby 2nd XI	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	6	3	0	0	18

**DATES HOME TEAM AWAY TEAM** VENUE Warranwood 3rd XI Norwood 3rd XI 5/167(cc) RW Manning 44\* M Hughes 31 P Keyhoe Mullum Reserve (Main) 6 Mar 21 9/136 J Barber 40 D Hughes 2/14 AJ Richards 2/19 27 N Russell 26\* JG Osborn 2/39 Healesville 2nd XI Bayswater Park 3rd XI Don Road Sporting Complex def 10/145 C Ray 42 D Sharma 40 E Fay 27 D MOORE 3/21 6 Mar 21 9/152(cc) Ba DAMROW 52 B WALLACE 38 J Hillam 3/45 (Don Road #2) E Fay 2/23 D Kerr 2/10 T DALLEY 2/28

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Healesville 2nd XI 6/143(cc) D EBBELS 28* C MIUTESCU 27 A Kearney 4/21	Warranwood 3rd XI def 92 N Russell 26 G Poynton 3/6 MP Jackson 3/11 Ba DAMROW 2/15	Queens Park (Healesville)

PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1 Hewer, Paul	Norwood Cricket Club	12	12	1	1	2	0				121	472	42.91	2052.2
2 Buchan, Craig	Warranwood Cricket Club	15	15	1	0	3	1	2	0	34	74	421	30.07	1451.7
3 Fisk, Darryn	Mooroolbark Cricket Club	11	11	2	0	1	0	9	5	79	90*	291	32.33	632.6
4 Franklin, Paul W	Scoresby Cricket Club	10	10	0	0	2	1				88	284	28.40	7100.0
5 Barber, Joshua	Norwood Cricket Club	8	5	1	0	3	0	6	6	108	94	274	68.50	232.2

	Runs Pl	layer	Team	Season	Grade	Round	Inns	Opponent
1	<b>121</b> Pa	aul Hewer	Norwood 3rd XI	2020/2021	C Grade (John Springett Shield)	5	1	Scoresby 2nd XI

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	O	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Jackson, Michael P	Healesville Cricket Club	13	94.1	16	242	23	0	0	4/15	10.52	24.57	2.57
2	Miller, Lewis	Norwood Cricket Club	11	81	7	313	19	1	0	6/26	16.47	25.58	3.86
3	DALLEY, Thomas	Healesville Cricket Club	11	69	11	237	18	0	0	4/13	13.17	23.00	3.43
4	Walker, Jamie W	Norwood Cricket Club	8	60	6	255	18	1	0	6/26	14.17	20.00	4.25
5	MOORE, Dylan	Healesville Cricket Club	10	66.3	6	268	18	1	0	5/19	14.89	22.17	4.03

Player	Team	Season	0	M	R	w	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1 Lewis Miller	Norwood 3rd XI	2020/2	7.2	1	2	6	C Grade (John Springett Shi	2	1	Mooroolbark 3rd XI
2 Jamie W Wal	Norwood 3rd XI	2020/2	8	2	2	6	C Grade (John Springett Shi	4	1	Kilsyth 3rd XI
3 Luke Fairy	South Croydon 3r	2020/2	4		1	5	C Grade (John Springett Shi	13	1	Warranwood 3rd XI
4 Dylan MOORE	Healesville 2nd XI	2020/2	8	3	1	5	C Grade (John Springett Shi	9	1	Norwood 3rd XI
5 Jamie Tooth	Kilsyth 3rd XI	2020/2	8	1	3	5	C Grade (John Springett Shi	14	1	South Croydon 3r
6 Trent Read	Scoresby 2nd XI	2020/2	7		3	5	C Grade (John Springett Shi	14	1	Healesville 2nd XI
7 Darryn Fisk	Mooroolbark 3rd XI	2020/2	8	0	4	5	C Grade (John Springett Shi	2	1	Norwood 3rd XI

# "D" GRADE - NEIL TULL SHIELD

Premiers: Heathwood CC

									•			
RANK	TEAN	1	P	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	9	Heathwood 2nd XI	14	11	2	1	86	2071	116	1545	69	1.81
2	aler.	Templeton 3rd XI	14	9	3	2	77	1953	92	1552	60	1.50
3	Ter.	Warrandyte 4th XI	14	9	4	1	103	1749	119	1415	57	1.43
4		St Andrews 4th XI	14	7	5	2	76	1610	97	1762	48	1.17
5	9	Wonga Park 4th XI	14	6	7	1	99	2132	100	2209	39	0.97
6		Chirnside Park 3rd XI	14	6	7	1	108	1885	91	2006	39	0.79
7	3	Croydon Ranges 4th XI	14	2	11	1	108	1893	75	2451	15	0.54
8	8	Boronia 4th XI	14	1	12	1	111	1593	78	1946	9	0.58

RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	9	Heathwood 2nd XI	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	6	6	6	6	3	6	0	69
2	al <sub>e</sub>	Templeton 3rd XI	6	6	0	0	3	6	6	6	6	6	0	3	6	6	60
3	C.	Warrandyte 4th XI	6	0	6	6	0	6	0	6	6	0	6	3	6	6	57
4		St Andrews 4th XI	0	6	6	0	3	6	6	0	0	6	6	3	0	6	48
5	9	Wonga Park 4th XI	0	6	0	6	6	0	6	0	0	0	6	3	0	6	39
6	Sanata .	Chirnside Park 3rd XI	6	0	0	0	6	0	0	6	6	6	0	3	6	0	39
7	3	Croydon Ranges 4th XI	0	0	0	6	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	15
8	8	Boronia 4th XI	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	9

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	Templeton 3rd XI 81 J Stubbs 3/24 D Gidley 2/3 B Waldron 2/15 N Mooney 2/32		Warrandyte 4th XI 3/83	Milpera Reserve
6 Mar 21	Heathwood 2nd XI 7/167(cc) C Noske 38 J Pocock 29* B Brown 28 M Kerr 2/22 C Millar 2/30	def	St Andrews 4th XI 10/117 L Wynd 25 R MacCartney 4/30 B Hanna 2/23 P Bremner 2/28	J.W Manson Reserve (Mid Oval)

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Heathwood 2nd XI 6/150 S Darmody 63* P Bremner 37 J Stubbs 2/14 S Ison 2/31	Warrandyte 4th XI  def 8/149(cc) S Dixon 48 J Weatherley 30 M Piper 3/28  R MacCartney 2/24	Heathmont Reserve

PLA	YER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1 Nosi	ke, Craig	Heathwood Cricket Club	15	13	2	0	2	0	40	4		76	361	32.82	90.0
2 Brow	vn, Bill	Heathwood Cricket Club	15	15	2	0	1	0	25	1		51	355	27.31	50.0
3 Love	ell, Jason	Wonga Park Cricket Club	13	12	1	0	1	0				84*	306	27.82	1176.9
4 Bren	nner, Paul	Heathwood Cricket Club	13	13	0	0	1	0	41	0		55	304	23.38	54.7
5 Colli	ns, Barry	Chirnside Park Cricket Club	13	13	0	0	1	3	36	3		77	294	22.62	247.1

	Runs	Player	Team	Season	Grade	Round	Inns	Opponent
1	136	Simon Bowyer	Warrandyte 4th XI	2020/2021	D Grade (Neil Tull Shield)	8	1	Croydon Ranges 4th XI

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Cameron, Damon	Heathwood Cricket Club	13	92	22	300	25	1	0	6/14	12.00	22.08	3.26
2	Stubbs, Jake	Warrandyte Cricket Club	13	89.2	17	217	22	0	0	3/8	9.86	24.36	2.43
3	Kimpton, James R	Wonga Park Cricket Club	12	76	10	281	21	0	0	4/19	13.38	21.71	3.70
4	Bremner, Paul	Heathwood Cricket Club	13	83.4	16	268	20	0	0	4/17	13.40	25.10	3.20
5	MacCartney, Joel	Heathwood Cricket Club	13	88.3	26	257	19	0	0	3/28	13.53	27.95	2.90

	Player	Team	Season	o	M	R	w	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1	Gurpreet Sidhu	Templeton 3rd XI	2020/2	8	4	1	7	D Grade (Neil Tull Shi	8	1	St Andrews 4th XI
2	Damon Cameron	Heathwood 2nd XI	2020/2	7.2	4	1	6	D Grade (Neil Tull Shi	13	1	St Andrews 4th XI
3	Kieren Ambrose	Templeton 3rd XI	2020/2	8	1	1	6	D Grade (Neil Tull Shi	9	1	Boronia 4th XI
4	Braeden Gordon	Heathwood 2nd XI	2020/2	5	4	2	5	D Grade (Neil Tull Shi	11	1	Chirnside Park 3r
5	James Weather	Warrandyte 4th XI	2020/2	8	3	1	5	D Grade (Neil Tull Shi	10	1	St Andrews 4th XI
6	Angus Redfern	Croydon Ranges 4th	2020/2	4	1	1	5	D Grade (Neil Tull Shi	1	1	Templeton 3rd XI
7	Caylen Forbes	Wonga Park 4th XI	2020/2	4.1	0	2	5	D Grade (Neil Tull Shi	10	1	Chirnside Park 3r
8	Nick Wunsch	St Andrews 4th XI	2020/2	8	3	2	5	D Grade (Neil Tull Shi	10	1	Warrandyte 4th XI
9	Christopher Millar	St Andrews 4th XI	2020/2	7	1	4	5	D Grade (Neil Tull Shi	8	1	Templeton 3rd XI
1	Steve Ward	Croydon Ranges 4th	2020/2	8		4	5	D Grade (Neil Tull Shi	9	1	Heathwood 2nd XI

# "E" GRADE - ANN PASCOE SHIELD

**Premiers**: South Warrandyte Hawks CC

RANK	TEAM		Р	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1		Seville 4th XI	14	12	0	2	46	1962	99	1701	78	2.48
2		Mount Evelyn 3rd XI	14	9	3	2	80	3204	98	2568	60	1.53
3	•	South Warrandyte 3rd XI	14	9	3	2	83	2264	94	1778	60	1.44
4	2	Wonga Park 5th XI	14	6	6	2	99	1780	90	2115	42	0.77
5	BULLS	North Ringwood 5th XI	14	5	8	1	105	2249	94	2521	33	0.80
6	*	Kilsyth 4th XI	14	5	8	1	100	2080	83	2256	33	0.77
7	8	St Andrews 5th XI	14	3	10	1	102	1849	79	2034	21	0.70
8	9	Heathwood 3rd XI	14	0	11	3	90	1887	68	2302	9	0.62

RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1		Seville 4th XI	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	3	6	6	6	3	6	6	78
2		Mount Evelyn 3rd XI	6	0	0	3	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	3	6	6	60
3	•	South Warrandyte 3rd XI	6	6	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	3	0	3	6	0	60
4	9	Wonga Park 5th XI	0	6	6	0	0	0	6	0	6	3	6	3	0	6	42
5	BUS	North Ringwood 5th XI	6	0	0	0	6	6	0	0	0	6	0	3	6	0	33
6	*	Kilsyth 4th XI	0	6	6	0	0	0	0	6	6	0	6	3	0	0	33
7		St Andrews 5th XI	0	0	0	6	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	3	0	6	21
8	•	Heathwood 3rd XI	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	3	0	0	9

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	Mount Evelyn 3rd XI 8/191(cc) A Brisbane-Flynn 51 B SMITH 41 B Shepherd 25 NT Walker 2/24 T Hall 2/50	def by	South Warrandyte 3rd XI  216 L James 90 TA Woodward 33 D Potter 4/37 B Shepherd 2/36	Mount Evelyn Reserve (Oval 2 (North))
6 Mar 21	Seville 4th XI 9/151(cc) D Walker 27 W Ashby 3/30 S Johnson 2/22 A Crowe 2/39	def	Wonga Park 5th XI 60 M Walker 4/9 A Humphrey 2/14	Seville Recreation Reserve (North Oval #2)

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Seville 4th XI	def South Warrandyte 3rd XI	Seville Recreation Reserve
	106 B Hardinge 28 J Sammartino 3/12 NT Walker 2/17	by 7/107 L James 31* C Frankovic 3/19 M Walker 2/17	(North Oval #2)

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Gosland, Gordon	Mount Evelyn Cricket Club	14	12	5	2	3	0	10	7	140	113*	576	82.29	612.8
2	DOYLE, CHRIS	Mount Evelyn Cricket Club	11	10	2	3	2	1	4	2	26	111	544	68.00	3022.2
3	Crowe, Anthony	Wonga Park Cricket Club	13	12	1	1	0	0				117*	477	43.36	536.0
4	Finch, Dwayne N	Mount Evelyn Cricket Club	9	9	1	1	3	0	6	3	82	107	404	50.50	612.1
5	Head, Cameron	South Warrandyte Hawks Cricket Club	11	10	2	0	2	0				98	338	42.25	388.5

	Runs	Player	Team	Season	Grade	Round	Inns	Opponent
1	162	Daniel Coppens	Kilsyth 4th XI	2020/2021	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	9	1	Mount Evelyn 3rd XI
2	117*	Anthony Crowe	Wonga Park 5th XI	2020/2021	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	9	1	North Ringwood 5th XI
3	113*	Gordon Gosland	Mount Evelyn 3rd XI	2020/2021	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	10	1	St Andrews 5th XI
4	111	CHRIS DOYLE	Mount Evelyn 3rd XI	2020/2021	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	4	1	Heathwood 3rd XI
5	107	CHRIS DOYLE	Mount Evelyn 3rd XI	2020/2021	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	9	1	Kilsyth 4th XI
6	107	Dwayne N Finch	Mount Evelyn 3rd XI	2020/2021	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	14	1	North Ringwood 5th XI
7	107	CHRIS DOYLE	Mount Evelyn 3rd XI	2020/2021	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	14	1	North Ringwood 5th XI
8	104	Michael Walker	Seville 4th XI	2020/2021	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	10	1	Kilsyth 4th XI
9	104	Michael Walker	Seville 4th XI	2020/2021	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	3	1	Mount Evelyn 3rd XI
1	102	Nick A McKay	St Andrews 5th XI	2020/2021	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	10	1	Mount Evelyn 3rd XI
11	100*	Gordon Gosland	Mount Evelyn 3rd XI	2020/2021	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	5	1	Wonga Park 5th XI

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Ashby, Warren	Wonga Park Cricket Club	14	84.2	13	310	20	0	0	3/16	15.50	25.30	3.68
2	Redfern, Christopher	North Ringwood Cricket Club	12	82	6	390	20	0	0	4/49	19.50	24.60	4.76
3	Darwall, Cameron	Seville Cricket Club (Seville Burras)	10	63.3	19	114	19	1	0	5/10	6.00	20.05	1.80
4	Smith, Dylan	Kilsyth Cricket Club	12	81	5	312	19	0	0	3/22	16.42	25.58	3.85
5	Keyhoe, Lachlan	Wonga Park Cricket Club	14	80.3	6	351	19	0	0	4/27	18.47	25.42	4.36

Player	Team	Season	o	M	R	w	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1 Cameron Darwall	Seville 4th XI	2020/2021	8	4	1	5	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	2	1	North Ringwood 5th XI
2 Manoj Beri	Seville 4th XI	2020/2021	8	0	2	5	E Grade (Ann Pascoe Shield)	7	1	South Warrandyte 3rd XI

# "YV" GRADE – DJ STRACHAN SHIELD

### Premiers: Hoddles Creek CC

RANK	TEAM		P	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1		Coldstream 1st XI	14	12	1	1	87	1905	124	1503	75	1.81
2	•	Hoddles Creek 1st XI	14	9	3	2	79	2433	114	2043	60	1.72
3	2	Yarra Junction 3rd XI	14	7	5	2	81	1944	103	1821	48	1.36
4		Woori Yallock 2nd XI	14	6	6	2	94	2215	91	2090	42	1.03
5		Seville 3rd XI	14	6	6	2	96	2055	102	2148	42	1.02
6		Powelltown 1st XI	14	6	7	1	97	2084	72	1948	39	0.79
7	9	Wandin 2nd XI	14	2	10	2	110	2189	66	2320	18	0.57
8		Marysville District 1st XI	14	1	11	2	82	1240	54	2192	12	0.37

RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1		Coldstream 1st XI	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	0	3	6	6	75
2	<u></u>	Hoddles Creek 1st XI	0	6	6	3	6	6	0	6	6	6	6	3	6	0	60
3	2	Yarra Junction 3rd XI	0	6	6	3	0	6	6	0	6	0	6	3	0	6	48
4		Woori Yallock 2nd XI	0	6	0	3	0	0	6	0	0	6	6	3	6	6	42
5		Seville 3rd XI	0	0	0	3	6	0	6	6	0	6	6	3	0	6	42
6		Powelltown 1st XI	6	0	6	0	6	6	0	6	6	0	0	3	0	0	39
7	9	Wandin 2nd XI	6	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	6	0	18
8		Marysville District 1st XI	6	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	12

DATES **AWAY TEAM VENUE HOME TEAM** Coldstream 1st XI def Woori Yallock 2nd XI Coldstream Recreation 6 Mar 21 8/137(cc) M Pezzementi 33 A Steele 25 S Morgan 4/20 by 6/141 E Smith 4/28 Reserve (Halle Supple Oval) A Rowe 2/20 J Wright 2/24 Hoddles Creek 1st XI Yarra Junction 3rd XI Hoddles Creek Community 6 Mar 21 107 N Dempsey 3/17 D Eastwood 3/24 AJ Robertson 2/22 Reserve 2/113 SJ Robertson 59\* BM Cole-Sinclair 27

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Hoddles Creek 1st XI 3/126 SJ Robertson 40* JA Pobke 34*	Woori Yallock 2nd XI lef 9/125(cc) MN Nicholls 53 BM Cole-Sinclair 6/28 LL Hoorn 2/18	Hoddles Creek Community Reserve

PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100 S	50S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1 Eastwood, Daniel	Hoddles Creek Cricket Club	15	15	4	1	4	1	2	0	29	206	611	55.55	3215.8
2 Nicholls, Michael N	Woori Yallock Cricket Club	10	10	0	0	4	0	40	7	147	82	402	40.20	427.7
3 Pezzementi, Michael	Coldstream Cricket Club	14	14	3	0	2	1				59*	390	35.45	
4 Hammond, Matt	Yarra Junction Cricket Club	11	11	1	0	5	1				81	386	38.60	
5 Derix, Glenn	Hoddles Creek Cricket Club	15	15	1	1	2	3	1	0	9	100	369	26.36	4612.5

Damalitania

	Runs	Player	Team	Season	Grade	Round	Inns	Opponent
1	206	Daniel Eastwood	Hoddles Creek 1st XI	2020/2021	DJ Strachan Shield	2	1	Marysville District 1st XI
2	140*	Jacob Neale	Powelltown 1st XI	2020/2021	DJ Strachan Shield	5	1	Marysville District 1st XI
3	121	rhett smith	Wandin 2nd XI	2020/2021	DJ Strachan Shield	13	1	Marysville District 1st XI
4	116	Stuart J Sculthorpe	Seville 3rd XI	2020/2021	DJ Strachan Shield	9	1	Powelltown 1st XI
5	103	Danny J Alderman	Wandin 2nd XI	2020/2021	DJ Strachan Shield	2	1	Yarra Junction 3rd XI
6	102*	Dean Worlley	Woori Yallock 2nd XI	2020/2021	DJ Strachan Shield	2	1	Powelltown 1st XI
7	101*	Steven Sanders	Powelltown 1st XI	2020/2021	DJ Strachan Shield	9	1	Seville 3rd XI
8	100*	Hayden Smith	Woori Yallock 2nd XI	2020/2021	DJ Strachan Shield	7	1	Wandin 2nd XI
9	100	Glenn Derix	Hoddles Creek 1st XI	2020/2021	DJ Strachan Shield	5	1	Woori Yallock 2nd XI

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Pezzementi, Michael	Coldstream Cricket Club	14	77.4	7	311	28	0	0	4/19	11.11	16.64	4.00
2	Wynd, Mitchell	Seville Cricket Club (Seville Burras)	11	68.1	11	261	25	1	0	5/18	10.44	16.36	3.83
3	Doolan, Andy	Yarra Junction Cricket Club	12	76	13	269	25	2	0	5/17	10.76	18.24	3.54
4	Cole-Sinclair, Brad M	Hoddles Creek Cricket Club	14	93	10	379	24	2	0	6/28	15.79	23.25	4.08
5	Morgan, Steve	Woori Yallock Cricket Club	13	88.3	4	453	23	0	0	4/20	19.70	23.09	5.12

2 Andy Doolan       Yarra Junction 3rd XI       2020/2021       8       3       1       5       DJ Strachan Shield       14       1       Powelltown 1st XI         3 Lucas L Hoorn       Hoddles Creek 1st XI       2020/2021       7       4       1       5       DJ Strachan Shield       3       1       Seville 3rd XI         4 Mitchell Wynd       Seville 3rd XI       2020/2021       8       2       1       5       DJ Strachan Shield       5       1       Yarra Junction 3rd         5 Jacob Neale       Powelltown 1st XI       2020/2021       8       2       2       5       DJ Strachan Shield       6       1       Seville 3rd XI	Player	Team	Season	0	М	R	W	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
3 Lucas L Hoorn Hoddles Creek 1st XI 2020/2021 7 4 1 5 DJ Strachan Shield 3 1 Seville 3rd XI 4 Mitchell Wynd Seville 3rd XI 2020/2021 8 2 1 5 DJ Strachan Shield 5 1 Yarra Junction 3rd 5 Jacob Neale Powelltown 1st XI 2020/2021 8 2 5 DJ Strachan Shield 6 1 Seville 3rd XI	1 Brad M Cole-Sinclair	Hoddles Creek 1st XI	2020/2021	6	0	2	6	DJ Strachan Shield	GF	1	Woori Yallock 2nd XI
4 Mitchell Wynd         Seville 3rd XI         2020/2021         8         2         1         5         DJ Strachan Shield         5         1         Yarra Junction 3rd           5 Jacob Neale         Powelltown 1st XI         2020/2021         8         2         5         DJ Strachan Shield         6         1         Seville 3rd XI	2 Andy Doolan	Yarra Junction 3rd XI	2020/2021	8	3	1	5	DJ Strachan Shield	14	1	Powelltown 1st XI
5 Jacob Neale Powelltown 1st XI 2020/2021 8 2 5 DJ Strachan Shield 6 1 Seville 3rd XI	3 Lucas L Hoom	Hoddles Creek 1st XI	2020/2021	7	4	1	5	DJ Strachan Shield	3	1	Seville 3rd XI
	4 Mitchell Wynd	Seville 3rd XI	2020/2021	8	2	1	5	DJ Strachan Shield	5	1	Yarra Junction 3rd XI
6 Sam Ismail Hoddles Creek 1st XI 2020/2021 5.2 1 2 5 DJ Strachan Shield 11 1 Marysville District	5 Jacob Neale	Powelltown 1st XI	2020/2021	8		2	5	DJ Strachan Shield	6	1	Seville 3rd XI
	6 Sam Ismail	Hoddles Creek 1st XI	2020/2021	5.2	1	2	5	DJ Strachan Shield	11	1	Marysville District 1st XI
7 Andy Doolan Yarra Junction 3rd XI 2020/2021 8 1 3 5 DJ Strachan Shield 11 1 Wandin 2nd XI	7 Andy Doolan	Yarra Junction 3rd XI	2020/2021	8	1	3	5	DJ Strachan Shield	11	1	Wandin 2nd XI
8 Brad M Cole-Sinclair Hoddles Creek 1st XI 2020/2021 8 5 5 DJ Strachan Shield 5 1 Woori Yallock 2nd	8 Brad M Cole-Sinclair	Hoddles Creek 1st XI	2020/2021	8		5	5	DJ Strachan Shield	5	1	Woori Yallock 2nd XI

# "YV" GRADE – RA FINGER TROPHY

Premiers: Launching Place CC

_										-		
RANK	TEAM		Р	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	\$	Yarra Glen 1st XI	12	9	2	1	68	1805	92	1490	69	1.64
2		Launching Place 1st XI	12	7	4	1	70	1488	91	1494	57	1.29
3		Healesville 3rd XI	11	5	5	1	70	1198	73	1234	51	1.01
4		Seville 5th XI	12	5	6	1	83	1612	74	1525	45	0.94
5	2	Yarra Junction 4th XI	11	2	9	0	97	1401	76	1751	27	0.63
6	9	Wandin 3rd XI	2	0	2	0	20	133	2	143	0	0.09

_										-			-				
RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	8	Yarra Glen 1st XI	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	0	6	6	6	3	6	6	69
2		Launching Place 1st XI	6	6	0	6	6	6	6	0	6	0	6	3	0	6	57
3		Healesville 3rd XI	6	0	0	6	6	0	6	6	0	6	6	3	6	0	51
4		Seville 5th XI	0	6	6	0	6	6	0	6	6	0	0	3	6	0	45
5	2	Yarra Junction 4th XI	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	6	0	6	0	3 <sup>A</sup>	0	6	27
6	92	Wandin 3rd XI	0	0													0

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	Launching Place 1st XI 3/227(cc) A Johnson 52* M McConnell 47 A VanDerVlugt 42	def	Healesville 3rd XI 175 T TWEEDIE 60* S HIGGS 27 DA Rowe 3/27 S Parker 2/27	Wickhams Road Reserve
6 Mar 21	Yarra Glen 1st XI 147 M Coghlan 50* GM Phelan 27 TG Nicolandos 3/25 A Beekhof 2/9 GA Foster 2/33	def	Seville 5th XI 8/128 GA Foster 39 J Woods 4/31 S Beath 2/16	Yarra Glen Recreation Reserve (Yarra Glen #1)

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Yarra Glen 1st XI	def Launching Place 1st XI	Yarra Glen Recreation
	9/141(cc) J Holland 51* S Parker 2/14 M Young 2/15	by 3/142 A Johnson 50* M McConnell 27 B Davey 2/8	Reserve (Yarra Glen #1)

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 S	08	48	68	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Coghlan, Matthew	Yarra Glen Cricket Club	11	11	5	0	4	0	8	0	426	52*	398	66.33	94.5
2	Cowan, Phillip P	Yarra Glen Cricket Club	13	13	2	0	3	1	15	1	204	80*	389	35.36	299.2
3	McConnell, Matt	Launching Place United Cricket Club	13	13	2	0	1	0	33	1	535	50*	371	33.73	83.6
4	Wunhym, Tony	Seville Cricket Club (Seville Burras)	9	9	4	0	3	1	8	2	49	68*	360	72.00	720.0
5	Johnson, Adam	Launching Place United Cricket Club	9	8	4	0	3	1	24	0	529	53*	309	77.25	81.7

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Young, Michael	Launching Place United Cricket Club	12	71.1	13	238	20	0	0	4/5	11.90	21.35	3.34
2	Woods, Jon	Yarra Glen Cricket Club	11	65.1	4	249	19	0	0	4/25	13.11	20.58	3.82
3	McConnell, Matt	Launching Place United Cricket Club	13	74	7	286	19	0	0	4/15	15.05	23.37	3.86
4	Parker, Stuart	Launching Place United Cricket Club	13	54.3	3	227	14	0	0	3/20	16.21	23.36	4.17
5	Sequeira, Anthony	Launching Place United Cricket Club	13	79.1	11	283	14	0	0	3/17	20.21	33.93	3.57

F	Player	Team	Season	o	М	R	w	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1 J	Jesse Bombinski	Yarra Junction 4th XI	2020/2021	7	2	15	5	R A Finger Trophy	8	1	Launching Place 1st XI

# "YV" GRADE – ADRIAN HAMMOND SHIELD

### Premiers:Coldstream CC

RANK	TEAM		Р	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1		Powelltown 2nd XI	14	11	2	1	60	1603	78	1360	69	1.53
2		Coldstream 2nd XI	14	9	4	1	67	1535	82	1499	57	1.25
3	•	Hoddles Creek 2nd XI	14	6	7	1	78	1651	86	1589	39	1.15
4		Seville 6th XI	14	6	7	1	69	1524	76	1560	39	1.08
5		Launching Place 2nd XI	14	4	9	1	83	1647	64	1717	27	0.74
6	2	Yarra Junction 5th XI	14	3	10	1	85	1380	56	1615	21	0.56

RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1		Powelltown 2nd XI	6	6	0	0	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	3	6	6	69
2		Coldstream 2nd XI	6	6	6	6	6	6	0	6	0	0	6	3	6	0	57
3	<u>_</u>	Hoddles Creek 2nd XI	6	0	0	0	0	6	6	0	6	0	0	3	6	6	39
4		Seville 6th XI	0	0	0	6	6	0	0	6	6	6	6	3	0	0	39
5		Launching Place 2nd XI	0	0	6	6	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	3	0	6	27
6	2	Yarra Junction 5th XI	0	6	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	0	3	0	0	21

DATES **HOME TEAM AWAY TEAM** VENUE Powelltown 2nd XI Seville 6th XI 6 Mar 21 Powelltown Reserve 6/80 J Schipper 2/22 73 B Green 3/9 P Dunne 2/8 M Newell 2/16 Coldstream 2nd XI Hoddles Creek 2nd XI 6 Mar 21 8/161(cc) M Thompson 53\* R Wheeler 44 LT Wisniewskidef 140 OD Lyons 31 GW Vukman 30 I Lyons 29 S Thompson Gruyere Recreation Reserve Payne 3/27 4/20 S Randall 3/27

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Powelltown 2nd XI 116 S Bethell 3/10 S Thompson 3/12 S Pegg 3/37	def Coldstream 2nd XI by 8/121(cc) R Wheeler 37 M Thompson 33	Powelltown Reserve

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Wheeler, Robert	Coldstream Cricket Club	15	13	8	0	5	0	6	0	107	54*	540	108.00	642.9
2	Carvill, Bradley	Launching Place United Cricket Club	11	11	3	0	0	1	13	0	404	47*	310	38.75	117.0
3	McRorie, Garry	Powelltown Cricket Club	13	11	4	0	3	0	1	0	43	52*	299	42.71	610.2
4	Robinson, Shane	Hoddles Creek Cricket Club	10	9	4	0	4	1	6	0	76	52*	289	57.80	466.1
5	Hall, John	Powelltown Cricket Club	10	9	3	0	2	0	1	0	50	50*	252	42.00	663.2

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Newell, Mitchell	Powelltown Cricket Club	13	64	0	191	20	0	0	4/14	9.55	19.20	2.98
2	Iskra, Maximus J	Seville Cricket Club (Seville Burras)	12	60.2	11	213	17	0	0	4/12	12.53	21.29	3.53
3	Wisniewski-Payne, Liam T	Hoddles Creek Cricket Club	12	63	5	179	16	0	0	3/27	11.19	23.63	2.84
4	Randall, Shane	Coldstream Cricket Club	13	63	10	198	16	0	0	3/27	12.38	23.63	3.14
5	Simon, Nathan	Coldstream Cricket Club	13	61	8	205	15	0	0	3/18	13.67	24.40	3.36

	Player	Team	Season	o	М	R	w	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1	Stephen Giddin	Yarra Junction 5th XI	2020/20	6	1	1	5	Adrian Hammond Shield	14	1	Launching Place 2nd XI
2	Michael K Porter	Hoddles Creek 2nd XI	2020/20	5		2	5	Adrian Hammond Shield	2	1	Powelltown 2nd XI

# "M1" GRADE – IAN DENCH SHIELD

Premiers: Montrose CC

_									*		,	
RANK	TEAM		Р	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	<b>3</b>	Scoresby 3rd XI	14	10	2	2	95	2706	92	1998	66	1.31
2	•	South Warrandyte 4th XI	14	8	3	3	86	1689	104	1880	57	1.09
3	4	Montrose 5th XI	14	8	5	1	79	2069	100	1947	51	1.35
4	*	Warranwood 4th XI	14	7	6	1	74	2121	84	2176	45	1.11
5	9	Wonga Park 6th XI	14	6	6	2	75	1878	89	1910	42	1.17
6	100	Ainslie Park 4th XI	14	5	8	1	86	1929	95	1938	33	1.10
7	9	Lilydale 4th XI	14	4	9	1	102	1789	72	1954	27	0.65
8		St Andrews 6th XI	14	2	11	1	110	1723	71	2101	15	0.53

_																	
RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	<b>Ø</b>	Scoresby 3rd XI	6	6	6	3	6	6	6	0	6	6	0	3	6	6	66
2	1	South Warrandyte 4th XI	6	6	0	3	6	0	6	3	6	6	6	3	0	6	57
3	4	Montrose 5th XI	6	0	6	6	0	0	0	6	6	6	6	3	0	6	51
4	***	Warranwood 4th XI	0	0	6	0	0	6	6	6	0	0	6	3	6	6	45
5	2	Wonga Park 6th XI	6	6	0	0	0	6	0	3	6	0	6	3	6	0	42
6	1	Ainslie Park 4th XI	0	0	6	6	0	0	6	6	0	6	0	3	0	0	33
7	9	Lilydale 4th XI	0	6	0	6	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	6	0	27
8		St Andrews 6th XI	0	0	0	0	6	6	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	15

DATES **HOME TEAM AWAY TEAM VENUE** Scoresby 3rd XI Warranwood 4th XI 6 Mar 21 4/157 J Augustine 35\* V Vincent 34 AK Joseph 28 A Desai Scoresby Recreation Reserve 8/155 A Ogilivie 33 J Augustine 3/24 V Vincent 2/26 2/22 South Warrandyte 4th XI Montrose 5th XI 7/200(cc) M Farrell 52\* N Robbins 38 C Day 30 L Thomas 6 Mar 21 110 KA Church 30 To Kennedy 2/3 JT Kennedy 2/9 C Day Croydon Hills Primary School 26 TJ Walker 3/13 N Mariniello 2/45 2/13

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Scoresby 3rd XI  133 B Unnikrishnan 33 J Augustine 26 CR Marshall 4/27  B Felstead 3/1	def Montrose 5th XI by 1/137 M Farrell 50* J Smith 50*	Scoresby Recreation Reserve

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 <b>S</b>	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Joseph, Ajeesh K	Scoresby Cricket Club	13	10	3	0	4	0				75*	435	62.14	
2	Rooks, Matthew	Warranwood Cricket Club	14	14	4	0	4	0	52	7		52*	420	42.00	166.0
3	Unnikrishnan, Benoy	Scoresby Cricket Club	14	13	3	0	4	0				55*	394	39.40	
4	Ogilivie, Andy	Warranwood Cricket Club	12	11	3	0	3	1	39	1		50*	370	46.25	5285.7
5	Vincent, Villy	Scoresby Cricket Club	15	13	2	0	2	0				51*	335	30.45	

**-**...

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Vincent, Villy	Scoresby Cricket Club	15	97	13	350	20	1	0	6/13	17.50	29.10	3.61
2	Goetz, Mitchell	South Warrandyte Hawks Cricket Club	12	81.1	9	361	19	0	0	4/10	19.00	25.63	4.45
3	Osborn, Damien	Wonga Park Cricket Club	12	61	13	212	17	0	0	4/22	12.47	21.53	3.48
4	Ishtiaq, Muhammad	St Andrews (RDCA) Cricket Club	11	61	10	255	17	0	0	4/28	15.00	21.53	4.18
5	Yelland, David	Montrose Cricket Club	14	70.3	4	258	17	0	0	4/9	15.18	24.88	3.66

										Opponent
1 Villy Vincent Scor	resby 3rd XI	2020/2021	7	2	13	6	M1 Grade (lan Dench Shield)	1	1	Lilydale 4th XI
2 Tom o Kennedy Mon	ntrose 5th XI	2020/2021	6.2		23	5	M1 Grade (lan Dench Shield)	8	1	Scoresby 3rd XI

# "M2" GRADE – JOHN MACMILLAN SHIELD

Premiers: Wantirna South CC

RANK	TEAM		P	W	L	D	Т	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	ĕ	Wantirna South 4th XI	14	11	2	1	0	66	2335	113	1703	69	2.35
2	18	Croydon North 3rd XI	14	11	2	1	0	69	1725	111	1352	69	2.05
3	ER	East Ringwood 4th XI	14	9	4	1	0	88	1982	114	1481	57	1.73
4	w	Warrandyte 5th XI	14	9	4	1	0	77	2110	106	1730	57	1.68
5		St Andrews 7th XI	14	4	9	1	0	102	1937	82	2357	27	0.66
6	• Marding	Wantirna 2nd XI	14	3	9	1	1	110	1523	62	1813	24	0.47
7	integral	Eastfield 3rd XI	14	2	10	1	1	116	1423	76	2207	18	0.42
8	.3.	Croydon Ranges 5th XI	14	2	11	1	0	108	1816	72	2208	15	0.55

											*						,
RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	ĕ	Wantirna South 4th XI	6	6	6	0	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	3	6	0	69
2	18	Croydon North 3rd XI	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	3	0	0	69
3	ER	East Ringwood 4th XI	0	6	6	0	6	6	0	6	6	0	6	3	6	6	57
4	W	Warrandyte 5th XI	0	6	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	0	6	3	0	6	57
5		St Andrews 7th XI	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	6	0	3	6	6	27
6	<ul> <li>Marchine</li> </ul>	Wantirna 2nd XI	6	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	6	0	3	0	6	24
7	(magazine)	Eastfield 3rd XI	6	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	3	6	0	18
8	3	Croydon Ranges 5th XI	0	0	0	6	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	15

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	Wantirna South 4th XI 1/149(cc) J Ballard 50* M Wheare 45	Warrandyte 5th XI def 7/146(cc) S Goddard 50* D El Moussalli 48* S Harrin 2/20 M Wheare 2/32	gton Walker Reserve (Wantima South)
6 Mar 21	Croydon North 3rd XI 114 AJ Caldwell 4/15 B Anderson 2/18	def East Ringwood 4th XI by 123 J Mcdonald 40 R Challis 4/18 A Smith 2/31	Barngeong Reserve (Oval 1)

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Wantirna South 4th XI 9/224(cc) J Ballard 57* S Charles 56* AJ Caldwell 4/37 L Suraj 2/38 C Pirera 2/41	def	East Ringwood 4th XI 75 M Nolan 3/12 P Riley 3/18 S Harrington 2/0 M Wheare 2/18	Walker Reserve (Wantirna South)

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	El Moussalli, Drew	Warrandyte Cricket Club	13	13	7	0	4	0	51	0	57	52*	497	82.83	497.0
2	Latham, Leigh	Wantirna South Cricket Club	14	14	5	0	1	0	2	0	31	51*	321	35.67	1070.0
3	Goddard, Stephen	Warrandyte Cricket Club	14	13	3	0	3	1	44	10	7	52*	290	29.00	547.2
4	Sethi, Kapil	St Andrews (RDCA) Cricket Club	10	10	4	0	4	1	34	11	58	55*	285	47.50	467.2
5	Harrington, Bradley	Wantirna South Cricket Club	14	13	6	0	3	4	0	0	7	53*	262	37.43	5240.0

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Delaney, Damon	East Ringwood Cricket Club	15	98	28	219	27	0	0	3/1	8.11	21.78	2.23
2	Harrington, Stephen	Wantirna South Cricket Club	15	78	11	261	27	0	0	4/10	9.67	17.33	3.35
3	Pirera, Callum	East Ringwood Cricket Club	15	78	8	338	27	1	0	6/17	12.52	17.33	4.33
4	Challis, Ryan	Croydon North Cricket Club	11	65.1	16	163	25	0	0	4/15	6.52	15.64	2.50
5	Smith, Anthony	Croydon North Cricket Club	12	68	16	219	23	1	0	5/14	9.52	17.74	3.22

1 Callum Pirera East Ringwood 4th 2020/2 6 1 6 M2 Grade (John Macmillan S 13 1 Warrandyte 5th 2 Anthony Smith Croydon North 3rd XI 2020/2 6 2 1 5 M2 Grade (John Macmillan S 6 1 Croydon Range 3 Beau Martin Wantima South 4th 2020/2 7 2 1 5 M2 Grade (John Macmillan S 13 1 Croydon North 3 1 Croydon North	Player	Team	Season	o	M	R	w	Grade	Rounc	Innings	Opponent
, ,	1 Callum Pirera	Pirera East Ringwood 4th	2020/2	6		1	6	M2 Grade (John Macmillan S	13	1	Warrandyte 5th XI
2 Reau Martin Wantina South 4th 2020/2 7 2 1 5 M2 Grade / John Macmillan S 13 1 Crowdon North	2 Anthony Smith	Smith Croydon North 3rd XI	2020/2	6	2	1	5	M2 Grade (John Macmillan S	6	1	Croydon Ranges 5t
o Dead Martin Warming County Africa. 2020/2 7 2 1 0 M2 Grade (confirmation) 10 11 Croydon North	3 Beau Martin	artin Wantirna South 4th	2020/2	7	2	1	5	M2 Grade (John Macmillan S	13	1	Croydon North 3rd XI
4 Toby Griffin Croydon Ranges 5 2020/2 4 3 5 M2 Grade (John Macmillan S 7 1 St Andrews 7th	4 Toby Griffin	ffin Croydon Ranges 5	2020/2	4		3	5	M2 Grade (John Macmillan S	7	1	St Andrews 7th XI

# "M3" GRADE – TIMOTHY COURT SHIELD

Premiers: Norwood CC

_									*	-		
RANK	TEAM		P	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	la.	Norwood 4th XI	14	11	2	1	80	2038	113	1679	69	1.71
2	9	Lilydale 5th XI	14	10	3	1	93	2141	98	1943	63	1.16
3	4	Montrose 6th XI	14	7	6	1	79	1840	91	1811	45	1.17
4	(M)	Mooroolbark 4th XI	13	7	5	1	78	1699	90	1784	45	1.10
5	(E)	Warrandyte 6th XI	14	6	7	1	73	1746	93	1784	39	1.25
6	1	Croydon North 4th XI	14	6	7	1	99	1756	88	1653	39	0.94
7	4	Bayswater Park 4th XI	13	3	9	1	88	1419	59	1556	21	0.61
8	20	South Croydon 4th XI	14	1	12	1	117	1552	75	1981	9	0.50

RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	þ	Norwood 4th XI	6	6	6	0	6	6	6	0	6	6	6	3	6	6	69
2	<b>**</b>	Lilydale 5th XI	6	0	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	0	3	0	6	63
3	4	Montrose 6th XI	0	6	6	6	6	0	0	0	6	0	6	3	6	0	45
4	(N)	Mooroolbark 4th XI	6	0	0	6	6	0		6	0	6	0	3	6	6	45
5	W	Warrandyte 6th XI	0	6	0	6	0	6	0	6	0	0	6	3	6	0	39
6	2	Croydon North 4th XI	0	6	0	0	0	0	6	6	0	6	6	3	0	6	39
7	1	Bayswater Park 4th XI	6	0	0	0	0	6		0	6	0	0	3	0	0	21
8	20	South Croydon 4th XI	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	9

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	Lilydale 5th XI 131 J Wyles 33 M Blackey 28 J Hartman 27 j brisbane 4/9 MS Cron 3/15	det	Montrose 6th XI 114 J Blair 25* S Smith 3/14	Lilydale Recreation Reserve (South)
6 Mar 21	Norwood 4th XI 8/194(cc) D Sherlock 50* M Wilson 41 MJ Johnson 28 HB Campbell 3/27 A Danisch 2/13 S Osborn 2/27	def	Mooroolbark 4th XI 8/142 S Osborn 44 MJ Johnson 2/16 M Scalzo 2/17	Mullum Reserve (Lower)

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Norwood 4th XI 7/128(cc) M Wilson 46 S Wyles 5/23	def	Mullum Reserve (Lower)

PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100 S	50 S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1 Wyles, Josh	Lilydale Cricket Club	15	15	5	0	5	1	70	1	181	52*	475	47.50	435.8
2 Wilson, Mark	Norwood Cricket Club	15	15	3	0	3	1	6	1	97	52*	432	36.00	635.3
3 Brooks, Aaron	Montrose Cricket Club	14	14	5	0	4	2	29	14		53*	377	41.89	92.4
4 Sherlock, David	Norwood Cricket Club	15	15	5	0	4	0	4	0	59	54*	367	36.70	734.0
5 Blackey, Martin	Lilydale Cricket Club	15	14	5	0	3	1	29	5	132	51*	315	35.00	346.2

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Wyles, Josh	Lilydale Cricket Club	15	100.3	18	386	22	0	0	4/32	17.55	27.41	3.84
2	Thwaites, Richard	Lilydale Cricket Club	15	101	19	285	18	0	0	2/11	15.83	33.67	2.82
3	Wyles, Sam	Lilydale Cricket Club	13	80	7	302	18	1	0	5/23	16.78	26.67	3.78
4	Cron, Max S	Montrose Cricket Club	10	53.5	10	169	17	0	0	3/7	9.94	19.00	3.14
5	Coats, Phill	Norwood Cricket Club	12	48.2	8	137	16	0	0	4/17	8.56	18.13	2.83

Player	Team	Season	0	M	R	w	Grade	Round I	nnings	Opponent
1 Russell Wood	Montrose 6th XI	2020/2	6		3	6	M3 Grade (Timothy Court Shi	9	1	Warrandyte 6th XI
2 Sam Glennie	South Croydon 4t	2020/2	6.3	2	3	5	M3 Grade (Timothy Court Shi	3	1	Croydon North 4th
3 Patrick McAl	Warrandyte 6th XI	2020/2	7	4	5	5	M3 Grade (Timothy Court Shi	11	1	South Croydon 4t
4 Shane Osborn	Mooroolbark 4th XI	2020/2	6	1	1	5	M3 Grade (Timothy Court Shi	1	1	Warrandyte 6th XI
5 Sam Wyles	Lilydale 5th XI	2020/2	7	0	2	5	M3 Grade (Timothy Court Shi	GF	1	Norwood 4th XI

# "M4" GRADE – TONY GAWNE SHIELD

#### Premiers: Chirnside Park CC

												-
RANK	TEAM		P	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	Section 1	Chirnside Park 4th XI	14	10	3	1	83	1898	106	1736	63	1.40
2	BULLS	North Ringwood 6th XI	14	9	4	1	70	1913	110	1698	57	1.77
3	2	Wonga Park 7th XI	14	9	4	1	70	1854	113	1878	57	1.59
4	*	Kilsyth 5th XI	14	9	4	1	81	2065	87	2077	57	1.07
5	1	Ainslie Park 5th XI	14	8	5	1	96	2166	89	1749	51	1.15
6	1	Warranwood 5th XI	14	4	9	1	100	1866	72	1914	27	0.70
7	9	Heathwood 4th XI	14	2	11	1	103	1630	75	2022	15	0.59
8	• Recting	Wantirna 3rd XI	14	1	12	1	116	1735	67	2053	9	0.49

_											-	-				-	
RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1		Chirnside Park 4th XI	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	0	6	6	6	3	6	0	63
2	BULLS	North Ringwood 6th XI	6	0	0	0	6	6	6	0	6	6	6	3	6	6	57
3	9	Wonga Park 7th XI	6	6	6	0	0	0	6	6	6	6	6	3	0	6	57
4	*	Kilsyth 5th XI	0	6	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	0	0	3	6	6	57
5	100	Ainslie Park 5th XI	6	6	0	6	6	0	0	6	0	6	6	3	0	6	51
6	-	Warranwood 5th XI	0	0	0	0	6	6	0	6	0	0	0	3	6	0	27
7	9	Heathwood 4th XI	0	0	0	6	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	15
8	• Maritima	Wantirna 3rd XI	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	9

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	Chirnside Park 4th XI  159 D Cameron 57* ST Luckhurst 36 B Fisher 3/23 S Gibb  2/26	def	Kilsyth 5th XI 9/112(cc) F Formston 44 S Fulton 33 RT Luckhurst 3/4 S Walliker 2/5 ZN Tresidder 2/22	Kimberley Reserve (Oval #1)
6 Mar 21	North Ringwood 6th XI 5/214(cc) N Reichman 47 S Parsons 47* J Rexhepi 35 R Parsons 33	def	Wonga Park 7th XI 158 D Hawley 79* A Williams 26 P Reichman 4/7	Barngeong Reserve (Oval 2)

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Chirnside Park 4th XI 8/148(cc) D Cameron 50* B Kinnear 2/9 P Reichman 2/30	North Ringwood 6th XI def 9/119(cc) S Parsons 30 RT Luckhurst 2/17 ZN Tres 2/21	sidder Kimberley Reserve (Oval #2)

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 <b>S</b>	08	48	6S	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Hawley, Darren	Wonga Park Cricket Club	14	14	8	0	8	0	42	35	329	79*	597	99.50	219.5
2	Trembearth, Martin A	Warranwood Cricket Club	11	11	4	0	4	0	40	1	47	53*	412	58.86	346.2
3	Formston , Frank	Kilsyth Cricket Club	12	12	3	0	3	0	11	0		51*	399	44.33	486.6
4	Smith, Dwayne	Heathwood Cricket Club	10	10	4	0	4	0	54	12		55*	397	66.17	94.5
5	Cameron, Darren	Chirnside Park Cricket Club	14	14	4	0	4	1	37	3	94	57*	358	35.80	218.3

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Williams, Aidan	Wonga Park Cricket Club	13	70.4	4	299	21	2	0	6/27	14.24	20.19	4.23
2	Parker, Ashley	Wonga Park Cricket Club	13	68.4	14	262	19	0	0	3/11	13.79	21.68	3.82
3	Fisher, Benjamin	Kilsyth Cricket Club	13	82	2	425	19	0	0	3/23	22.37	25.89	5.18
4	Gray, Russell	Warranwood Cricket Club	10	39.5	3	177	17	1	0	5/16	10.41	14.06	4.44
5	Luckhurst, Ryan T	Chirnside Park Cricket Club	11	46	10	160	16	0	0	4/18	10.00	17.25	3.48

Player	Team	Season	0	M	R	W	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1 Aidan Williams	Wonga Park 7th XI	2020/2	6	2	2	6	M4 Grade (Tony Gawne Sh	7	1	Wantirna 3rd XI
2 Bradley D Pennin	Chirnside Park 4th	2020/2	6	2	9	5	M4 Grade (Tony Gawne Sh	6	1	Heathwood 4th XI
3 Matthew P Power	North Ringwood 6t	2020/2	5		1	5	M4 Grade (Tony Gawne Sh	6	1	Wantirna 3rd XI
4 Russell Gray	Warranwood 5th XI	2020/2	4	1	1	5	M4 Grade (Tony Gawne Sh	6	1	Wonga Park 7t
5 Shane Walliker	Chirnside Park 4th	2020/2	7	2	2	5	M4 Grade (Tony Gawne Sh	1	1	Wantirna 3rd XI
6 Aidan Williams	Wonga Park 7th XI	2020/2	6	0	2	5	M4 Grade (Tony Gawne Sh	3	1	Ainslie Park 5th

# "M5" GRADE

Premiers: Scoresby CC

RANK	TEAM		P	W	L	D	T	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	ER	East Ringwood 5th XI	14	13	0	1	0	65	2111	111	1693	81	2.13
2	<b>3</b>	Scoresby 4th XI	14	9	4	1	0	86	1763	98	1441	57	1.39
3	al <sub>e</sub>	Templeton 4th XI	14	8	4	1	1	78	2037	104	1981	54	1.37
4		Chirnside Park 5th XI	14	8	5	1	0	91	2026	93	1768	51	1.17
5		Mount Evelyn 4th XI	14	7	6	1	0	93	2003	107	1890	45	1.22
6	[magnitud]	Eastfield 4th XI	14	6	6	1	1	108	1747	88	1842	42	0.77
7	•	South Warrandyte 5th XI	14	4	9	1	0	75	1430	73	1606	27	0.87
8	ĕ	Wantirna South 5th XI	14	4	9	1	0	78	1661	75	1886	27	0.85
9	W	Warrandyte 7th XI	14	3	10	1	0	111	1750	62	1822	21	0.54
10		St Andrews 8th XI	14	2	11	1	0	98	1606	72	2205	15	0.54

RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	ER	East Ringwood 5th XI	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	3	6	6	81
2	<b>3</b>	Scoresby 4th XI	0	6	6	0	6	0	6	6	6	0	6	3	6	6	57
3	M <sub>e</sub>	Templeton 4th XI	6	6	0	6	0	6	0	3	0	6	6	3	6	6	54
4		Chirnside Park 5th XI	6	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	0	0	0	3	0	6	51
5		Mount Evelyn 4th XI	6	0	0	6	6	6	6	0	6	0	0	3	6	0	45
6	[insurance]	Eastfield 4th XI	0	0	6	0	6	6	0	3	0	6	6	3	0	6	42
7	•	South Warrandyte 5th XI	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	6	3	6	0	27
8	S.	Wantirna South 5th XI	0	0	6	0	0	0	6	0	6	6	0	3	0	0	27
9	1	Warrandyte 7th XI	6	0	0	0	0	6	0	6	0	0	0	3	0	0	21
10		St Andrews 8th XI	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	3	0	0	15

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	Scoresby 4th XI 10/160(cc) B Cafferkey 45 J Cunningham 33 P Muscat 32 T Nurse 3/14 RL Meehan 2/15 ST Tasevski 2/29	def	Templeton 4th XI 10/134(cc) C Henry 32 A Hathaway 27 ML Walters 25 J Cunningham 3/25	Llewellyn Park Reserve (#2)
6 Mar 21	East Ringwood 5th XI 3/204 P Baker 50* B Niemann 50* A Niemann 38 M Joyce 2/29	def	Chirnside Park 5th XI 3/201(cc) W Halion 50* M Bennett 47 P Dryden 36*	Dorset Recreation Reserve (East)

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	East Ringwood 5th XI 8/120(cc) B Niemann 25 P Cafferkey 2/8 J Marr-Reid 2/11 J Cunningham 2/19	def Scoresby 4th XI by 3/121 P Muscat 50* B Anderson 2/18	East Ringwood Reserve (Oval #1)

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50 S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Niemann, Brad	East Ringwood Cricket Club	14	13	9	0	7	0				53*	505	126.25	
2	Muscat, Phillip	Scoresby Cricket Club	13	13	8	0	7	0	3	1	58	60*	452	90.40	664.7
3	Bennett, Mark	Chirnside Park Cricket Club	12	12	3	0	4	2	55	10		85*	435	48.33	517.9
4	Baker, Peter	East Ringwood Cricket Club	14	14	4	0	3	0				53*	384	38.40	
5	Joyce, Matthew	Chirnside Park Cricket Club	11	11	3	0	3	1	51	8		53*	381	47.63	392.8

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	O	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Cunningham, John	Scoresby Cricket Club	12	62	13	148	29	2	0	5/5	5.10	12.83	2.39
2	Joyce, Matthew	Chirnside Park Cricket Club	11	65.2	14	134	24	0	0	4/6	5.58	16.33	2.05
3	Patel, Pratik	Wantirna South Cricket Club	12	66.3	1	270	23	1	0	7/5	11.74	17.35	4.06
4	Niemann, Alex	East Ringwood Cricket Club	15	58	1	287	20	1	0	5/22	14.35	17.40	4.95
5	Nichol, Archie D	East Ringwood Cricket Club	11	51	5	184	19	1	0	5/19	9.68	16.11	3.61

Player	Team	Season	0	M	R	W	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1 Pratik Patel	Wantirna South 5th XI	2020/2021	4.2	1	5	7	M5 Grade	7	1	Eastfield 4th XI
2 Joshua O'Brien	Mount Evelyn 4th XI	2020/2021	4	2	9	6	M5 Grade	6	1	St Andrews 8th XI
3 John Cunningham	Scoresby 4th XI	2020/2021	6	2	5	5	M5 Grade	14	1	Wantirna South 5th XI
4 John Cunningham	Scoresby 4th XI	2020/2021	6	2	11	5	M5 Grade	7	1	Templeton 4th XI
5 James Conboy	Scoresby 4th XI	2020/2021	6	1	12	5	M5 Grade	11	1	St Andrews 8th XI
6 Archie D Nichol	East Ringwood 5th XI	2020/2021	7		19	5	M5 Grade	3	1	South Warrandyte 5th XI
7 Alex Niemann	East Ringwood 5th XI	2020/2021	6		22	5	M5 Grade	7	1	Warrandyte 7th XI
8 Daniel Farmer	St Andrews 8th XI	2020/2021	7	1	22	5	M5 Grade	9	1	Warrandyte 7th XI

# "M6" GRADE

#### Premiers:

RANK	TEAM		Р	W	L	D	WKTSLOST	RUNSFOR	WKTSTAKEN	RUNSAGST	PTS	%
1	2	Wonga Park 8th XI	13	12	0	1	52	1430	82	1142	81	1.97
2	1	Croydon Ranges 6th XI	12	8	3	1	65	1980	69	1488	63	1.41
3	*	Kilsyth 6th XI	13	7	5	1	63	1278	89	1313	51	1.38
4		Chirnside Park 6th XI	13	7	5	1	85	1556	89	1485	51	1.10
5	(E)	Warrandyte 8th XI	12	6	5	1	68	1598	70	1579	51	1.04
6	•	Heathwood 5th XI	12	5	6	1	63	1516	67	1605	45	1.00
7	# <sub>C</sub>	Templeton 5th XI	13	5	7	1	80	1372	61	1453	39	0.72
8	20	South Croydon 5th XI	12	2	9	1	76	1557	53	1644	27	0.66
9	1	Croydon North 5th XI	13	0	12	1	46	448	18	1026	9	0.17

RANK	TEAM		R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	R8	R9	R10	R11	R12	R13	R14	POINTS
1	9	Wonga Park 8th XI	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	3	6	6	81
2	<u>.</u>	Croydon Ranges 6th XI	6	6	0	6	6	6	6	0	6	6	6	3	6	0	63
3	*	Kilsyth 6th XI	0	6	6	6	6	0	6	0	0	0	6	3 <sup>A</sup>	6	6	51
4		Chirnside Park 6th XI	6	0	0	6	0	0	6	6	6	6	0	3	6	6	51
5	W	Warrandyte 8th XI	6	0	6	0	6	6	0	6	6	6	6	3	0	0	51
6	9	Heathwood 5th XI	0	6	6	6	0	0	0	6	6	0	0	3	6	6	45
7	#ur	Templeton 5th XI	6	0	0	0	6	6	6	6	0	6	0	3	0	0	39
8	20	South Croydon 5th XI	0	6	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	3	0	6	27
9	1	Croydon North 5th XI	0	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	9

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
6 Mar 21	Croydon Ranges 6th XI 6/193 B Wood 45 B Tucker 28 J Wood 26* C Rakic 3/46 J Wilson 2/30	def	Kilsyth 6th XI 2/186(cc) F Rebeiro 50* E Glazner 50* S Glazner 37	Griff Hunt Reserve
6 Mar 21	Wonga Park 8th XI 7/218(cc) A Hood 50* J Glassborow 45 DW Close 44 P Grimley 3/27 CG Wyngaard 2/23	def	Chirnside Park 6th XI 141 C David 51 L Dines 4/28 M MacLennan 3/15 J Glassborow 2/9	Wonga Park Reserve (Oval #2)

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Wonga Park 8th XI 6/168(cc) J Glassborow 50* BJ Hood 46 J Murphy 31 Z Tucker 2/9 B Wood 2/10	Croydon Ranges 6th XI def 118 M Cleeman 27 J Wood 26 J Glassborow 4/19 L D 2/18	Wonga Park Reserve (Oval #2)

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50S	08	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Darmody, Steve	Heathwood Cricket Club	10	10	6	0	6	0	54	8		53*	384	96.00	121.5
2	Glazner, Eric	Kilsyth Cricket Club	12	11	5	0	4	0	11	0		51*	369	61.50	1476.0
3	Moschetti, Jacob C	Croydon Ranges Cricket Club	11	10	4	0	4	0	27	10		63*	307	51.17	3411.1
4	Glassborow, Joel	Wonga Park Cricket Club	11	10	4	0	3	0				50*	290	48.33	
5	Warren, Greg	Warrandyte Cricket Club	10	10	1	0	1	0	31	11		50*	290	32.22	

Crowdon Range

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Glassborow, Joel	Wonga Park Cricket Club	11	48	8	139	16	0	0	4/6	8.69	18.00	2.90
2	Rakic, Cody	Kilsyth Cricket Club	10	56	10	243	16	0	0	4/5	15.19	21.00	4.34
3	Hay, Hugo	Warrandyte Cricket Club	10	60	6	248	16	0	0	3/19	15.50	22.50	4.13
4	Dines, Lachlan	Wonga Park Cricket Club	12	47.3	2	175	15	0	0	4/15	11.67	19.00	3.68
5	Wyngaard, Corey G	Chirnside Park Cricket Club	13	55.4	11	176	15	0	0	3/17	11.73	22.27	3.16

Player	Team	Season	o	M	R	w	Grade	Round	Innings	Opponent
1 Lachlan Smith	Heathwood 5th XI	2020/2021	7	1	20	6	M6 Grade	8	1	Kilsyth 6th XI
2 Brad Wood	Croydon Ranges 6th XI	2020/2021	4	2	5	5	M6 Grade	2	1	Croydon North 5th XI

# Masters 1 - Bill Dean Trophy

**Premiers**: Warranwood CC and South Warrandyte Hawks CC

											-			• •
RANK	TEAM	Р	вуЕ	W2	W1	D	L1	L2	WKTS LOST	RUNS FOR	WKTS TAKEN	RUNS AGST	POINTS	NRR
1	Warranwood	7	1	0	5	0	2	0	38	1298	58	1015	36	1.1868
2	South Warrandyte Hawks 1	6	1	0	4	0	2	0	40	921	45	884	30	-0.1286
3	Wonga Park 1	6	2	0	3	0	3	0	44	914	45	976	24	-0.0011
4	Warrandyte	6	1	0	3	0	3	0	40	686	25	756	24	-0.5771
5	Lilydale	7	1	0	1	0	6	0	47	799	36	987	12	-0.9367

RANK	TEAM	R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	POINTS	NRR
1	Warranwood	6	6	6	6	6	0	0 6	36	1.1868
2	South Warrandyte Hawks 1	6	6	0	0	6	6	6	30	-0.1286
3	Wonga Park 1	0	0	6	6	6	6	0	24	-0.0011
4	Warrandyte	6	0	6	0	0		6 6	24	-0.5771
5	Lilydale	0	6	0	6	0	0	0	12	-0.9367

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
28 Feb 21	South Warrandyte Hawks 1 7/155 P Milne 32* B Hartrup 28 T Livingstone 28 P Ballagh 2/14 S Champion 2/21 C Ballingall 2/46	def	Wonga Park 1 149 P Ballagh 43* R Coutts 40* T Hubbard 2/27 M Featherston 2/29	Colman Park
28 Feb 21	Warranwood 4/187(cc) A Begg 43* C Matthews 40* M Rooks 33 R Bartlett 26	def	Warrandyte 9/138 D Sampimon 31 DG Wright 4/15	Quambee Reserve (Main)

DATES	HOME TEAM	AWAY TEAM	VENUE
14 Mar 21	Warranwood	drew South Warrandyte Hawks 1	Quambee Reserve (Main)

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50S	0S	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.
1	Matthews, Cameron	Warranwood Cricket Club	8	8	6	0	0	0	11	2		43*	261	130.50
2	Ballagh, Phil	Wonga Park Cricket Club	7	7	3	0	0	0				44*	215	53.75
3	Begg, Andrew	Warranwood Cricket Club	8	8	4	0	0	0	13	1		43*	214	53.50
4	Sampimon, Damien	Warrandyte Cricket Club	7	7	5	0	0	1	22	5		42*	214	107.00
5	Rooks, Matthew	Warranwood Cricket Club	8	7	2	0	0	0	14	1		40*	187	37.40
6	Hartrup, Ben	South Warrandyte Hawks Cricket Club	6	6	3	0	0	0				42*	179	59.67
7	Livingstone, Tim	South Warrandyte Hawks Cricket Club	7	7	3	0	0	0				43*	159	39.75
8	Bartlett, Robert	Warranwood Cricket Club	7	6	2	0	0	0	10			41*	151	37.75
9	Houghton, Adam	Warranwood Cricket Club	8	8	1	0	0	0	7	1		40*	148	21.14
10	Careedy, Brett	South Warrandyte Hawks Cricket Club	8	8	2	0	0	1				35*	136	22.67

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	W	5WI	10WM	ВВІ	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Wright, David G	Warranwood Cricket Club	8	35	2	127	13	0	0	4/15	9.77	16.15	3.63
2	Ballagh, Phil	Wonga Park Cricket Club	7	31.5	5	135	12	0	0	4/7	11.25	15.92	4.24
3	Buchan, Craig	Warranwood Cricket Club	8	32	2	162	11	0	0	3/11	14.73	17.45	5.06
4	Champion, Shane	Wonga Park Cricket Club	7	28	2	96	9	0	0	3/21	10.67	18.67	3.43
5	Whitbread, Matthew	Warrandyte Cricket Club	5	24	5	84	8	0	0	3/15	10.50	18.00	3.50
6	Rule, Tim	South Warrandyte Hawks Cricket Club	8	27.4	4	122	8	0	0	2/6	15.25	20.75	4.41
7	Hubbard, Tony	South Warrandyte Hawks Cricket Club	8	31.2	1	146	8	0	0	2/17	18.25	23.50	4.66
8	Cutler, Richard	South Warrandyte Hawks Cricket Club	6	33	2	120	7	0	0	2/14	17.14	28.29	3.64
9	Sampimon, Damien	Warrandyte Cricket Club	7	34	4	121	7	0	0	3/17	17.29	29.14	3.56
10	Oxley, Stephen	Lilydale Cricket Club	5	7.3	0	54	6	0	0	3/33	9.00	7.50	7.20

# Masters 2 - Ken Johnston Trophy

Premiers: Woori Yallock

RANK	TEAM	P	W2	W1	D	L1	L2	WKTS LOST	RUNS FOR	WKTS TAKEN	RUNS AGST	POINTS	NRR
1	Woori Yallock	7	0	6	1	0	0	43	1231	53	868	39	1.2536
2	Croydon Ranges	7	0	6	0	1	0	54	1099	53	1059	36	0.2194
3	Mooroolbark	7	0	3	0	4	0	46	957	56	1023	18	0.2829
4	Wonga Park 2	7	0	3	0	4	0	53	1019	48	990	18	-0.0139
5	South Croydon	7	0	1	1	5	0	33	949	38	980	9	-0.3980
6	South Warrandyte Hawks 2	7	0	1	0	6	0	61	860	42	1195	6	-1.3800

							-			
RANK	TEAM	R1	R2	R3	R4	R5	R6	R7	POINTS	NRR
1	Woori Yallock	6	6	6	6	6	6	3	39	1.2536
2	Croydon Ranges	6	6	0	6	6	6	6	36	0.2194
3	Mooroolbark	6	0	0	6	0	6	0	18	0.2829
4	Wonga Park 2	0	6	6	0	6	0	0	18	-0.0139
5	South Croydon	0	0	6	0	0	0	3	9	-0.3980
6	South Warrandyte Hawks 2	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	6	-1.3800

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
28 Feb 21	Croydon Ranges 8/157 J Stafford 42* D Tucker 40* S Donovan 3/14 J Matthews 2/14	def by	Mooroolbark 2/162 P Jones 44* R Jennings 40* B Smith 35 M Ormsby 27*	Griff Hunt Reserve
28 Feb 21	Woori Yallock 163 A Sharp 41* M Brendle 3/22 CJ Heath 2/34	def	Wonga Park 2 127 TD George 30 RA Felicissimo 29 D Ryan 5/17 D Hyndman 2/8	Woori Yallock Reserve

#### **Grand Final**

\_

DATES	HOME TEAM		AWAY TEAM	VENUE
7 Mar 21	Woori Yallock 6/228(cc) D Spencer 43* D Hyndman 40* T Dwyer 40* MC Dwyer 33 M Ormsby 2/38	def	Mooroolbark 5/170(cc) P Jones 41* B Smith 40* R Jennings 27 A Sharp 2/19	Woori Yallock Reserve

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	INN	NO	100S	50S	0S	48	6 <b>S</b>	MINS	HS	RUNS	AVE.	STR.
1	Hyndman, Danny	Woori Yallock Cricket Club	9	9	4	0	0	0	26	8		43*	291	58.20	
2	Jones, Paul	Mooroolbark Cricket Club	9	9	5	0	0	0	8	2	78	44*	259	64.75	404.7
3	Spencer, Dallas	Woori Yallock Cricket Club	8	8	4	0	0	0	13	10		43*	232	58.00	
4	Hooker, Brendan	South Croydon Cricket Club	7	7	4	0	0	0	7			41*	205	68.33	
5	Dwyer, Michael C	Woori Yallock Cricket Club	9	8	3	0	0	0	16	4		40*	196	39.20	
6	Lawrence, Anthony	Wonga Park Cricket Club	7	7	3	0	0	1				42*	188	47.00	308.2
7	Lewis, Chris A	South Warrandyte Hawks Cricket Club	7	7	4	0	0	0				43*	184	61.33	
8	Tucker, David	Croydon Ranges Cricket Club	8	8	2	0	0	1	18	2		40*	180	30.00	185.6
9	Smith, Brent	Mooroolbark Cricket Club	9	8	1	0	0	0	1	0	18	40*	178	25.43	988.9
10	Dwyer, Tim	Woori Yallock Cricket Club	6	6	1	0	0	0	14	4		40*	167	33.40	

	PLAYER	CLUB	MAT	0	M	R	w	5WI	10WM	BBI	AVE.	STR.	ECN.
1	Ormsby, Michael	Mooroolbark Cricket Club	9	44	5	167	12	0	0	4/24	13.92	22.00	3.80
2	Matthews, Jeffrey	Mooroolbark Cricket Club	8	39	4	174	12	0	0	4/9	14.50	19.50	4.46
3	Whitworth, Adam	Woori Yallock Cricket Club	8	33	3	121	10	0	0	4/3	12.10	19.80	3.67
4	Donovan, Shane	Mooroolbark Cricket Club	9	39	1	158	10	0	0	3/12	15.80	23.40	4.05
5	Hyndman, Danny	Woori Yallock Cricket Club	9	25.3	4	66	9	0	0	3/4	7.33	17.00	2.59
6	Ryan, Danny	Woori Yallock Cricket Club	7	35	5	124	9	1	0	5/17	13.78	23.33	3.54
7	Heath, Cameron J	Wonga Park Cricket Club	7	39	2	156	9	0	0	4/16	17.33	26.00	4.00
8	Barrand, Justin	Mooroolbark Cricket Club	9	44	1	231	9	0	0	2/12	25.67	29.33	5.25
9	Felicissimo, Robert A	Wonga Park Cricket Club	7	12.5	1	61	8	0	0	3/7	7.63	9.63	4.75
10	Dwyer, Michael C	Woori Yallock Cricket Club	9	29.4	5	109	8	0	0	2/14	13.63	22.25	3.67

## AWARD WINNERS

#### CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP – Phil McCallum award

Winner Montrose CC

#### SPIRIT OF CRICKET TROPHY – Ron Ellis award

(Professional Umpires rate teams that compete in the top five grades, in 5 categories, at end of each match)

Winner Healesville CC

#### BEST ADMINISTERED CLUB - Bob Bissett award

(Senior Committee introduced this award in season 2010/11 and it selects the winner)

Winner Wantirna South CC

#### UMPIRE OF THE YEAR TROPHY – Ken Dunham award

(based on the ratings given by team captains after each round)

Winner Shawn Everitt

#### FRED HODGKINS ALL STAR TEAM OF THE YEAR

(Player statistics do not include finals games).

Cameron Smith (Wantirna South) – 444 runs @ 37.00

Ryan Smith (South Croydon) - 388 runs @ 32.33 and 19 wickets @ 17.84

Keiran Perkins (Montrose) – 376 runs @ 34.18 and 26 catches, 4 stumpings and 4 runouts

Simon Gray (North Ringwood) – 410 runs @ 58.57

Troy Mc Gown (Wantirna South) – 418 runs @ 38.00

Michael McDonald (Wantirna South) – 416 runs @ 32.00

Simon Young (Mooroolbark) – 17 wickets @13.53

Leigh Jones (Ainslie Park) – 21 wickets @ 15.19.

Rory Tattersall (South Croydon) – 18 wickets @ 19.67

Luke Ridgwell (North Ringwood) – 25 wickets @ 14.32

**Drew McKay** (Wantirna South) – 23 wickets @ 15.74 (captain)

#### UNDER 21 PLAYER OF THE SEASON

No Award in 2020/2021

#### **BEST and FAIREST AWARDS**

(Decided on umpires votes)

Bill Dean Medal - Lindsay Trollope Shield

Ryan Smith (16) South Croydon

Bill Wilkins Medal - Bill Wilkins Cup

David Johnson (20) Warranwood

Stuart Newey Medal - Stuart Newey Plate

Amith Eranda (17) Scoresby

Steve Pascoe Medal - Steve Pascoe Shield

Trent Sier (15) Ainslie Park

Pat Meehan Medal - Pat Meehan Shield

Christopher Deidun (16) Heathwood

Ian Spencer Medal - Ian Spencer Shield

Armaan Brar (16) Wantirna

DJ Strachan Medal - Ian Spencer Shield

Michael Pezzementi (18) Coldstream

RA Finger Medal – RA Finger Trophy

Tyler Tweedle (9) Healesville

**ALLROUNDER TROPHIES** 

**RA Finger Shield:** 

Tyler Tweedie Healesville

**DJ Strachan Shield:** 

Michael Pezzementi Coldstream

**Spencer Shield:** 

Armaan Brar Wantirna

Meehan Shield:

Christopher Deidun Heathwood

Pascoe Shield:

Trent Sier Ainslie Park

**Newey Plate:** 

Amith Eranda Scoresby

Wilkins Cup:

David Johnson Warranwood

**Trollope Shield:** 

#### **BATTING and BOWLING AVERAGES**

Qualifying criteria is as follows:

A batsman must bat in at least half the matches played by the team in the particular grade for the season and score more than 250 runs in that grade (for Modified grades it is 200 runs).

A bowler must bowl in at least half the matches played in the particular grade. In Trollope, Wilkins, Newey, Pascoe and Meehan, a bowler must deliver not less than 480 balls and take not less than 20 wickets, In the Modified grades it is 300 and 15 and all other grades it is 360 and 20. The Senior Committee may vary these conditions under special circumstances).

Trollope Shield	Bowling	BAILEY HUMPHREY 17 wkts @ 12.88 LILYDALE
	Batting	SIMON GRAY 410 runs @ 58.57 NORTH RINGWOOD
Wilkins Cup	Bowling	NATHAN LESTER 28 wkts @ 17.54 NORWOOD
	Batting	TAYLOR GIBSON 481 runs @ 68.71 EAST RINGWOOD
Newey Plate	Bowling	MATTHEW TILNEY 25 wkts @ 11.16 SEVILLE
	Batting	SHANE COSSTICK 343 runs @ 49.00 CHIRNSIDE PARK
Pascoe Shield	Bowling	DANIEL CROWE 22 wkts @ 11.95 MONTROSE
	Batting	MARK MINNEY 431 runs @ 43.10 HEALESVILLE
Meehan Shield	Bowling	CHRISTOPHER DEIDUN 22 wkts @ 9.95 HEATHWOOD
	Batting	BRENDON TRUMP 301 runs @37.63 BAYSWATER PARK

Spencer Shield	Bowling	MICHAEL WILLIAMSON 25 wkts @ 11.44 WONGA PARK
	Batting	CHRIS ALLEN 493 runs @ 61.63 WANTIRNA
DJ Strachan Shield	Bowling	ANDY DOOLAN 25 wkts @ 9.76 YARRA JUNCTION
	Batting	JAYDEN POBKE 301 runs @60.20 HODDLES CREEK
RA Finger Shield	Bowling	MICHAEL YOUNG 17 wkts @ 10.82 LAUNCHING PLACE
	Batting	TONY WUNHYM 360 runs @ 90.00 SEVILLE
Hammond Shield	Bowling	MITCHELL NEWELL 18 wkts @ 9.72 POWELLTOWN
	Batting	ROBERT WHEELER 459 runs @ 153.00 COLDSTREAM
A Grade	Bowling	BRANDON STAFFORD 26 wkts @ 12.31 WARRANDYTE
	Batting	MATT SUTHERLAND 399 runs @44.33 ST ANDREWS
B Grade	Bowling	MARK HAYHURST 19 wkts @ 12.05 MONTROSE
	Batting	ROHAN SCHULTIES 391 runs @ 43.44 CROYDON RANGES
C Grade	Bowling	MICHAEL JACKSON 19 wkts @ 10.58 HEALESVILLE
	Batting	JOSHUA BARBER 234 runs @ 78.00 NORWOOD
D Grade	Bowling	JAKE STUBBS 17 wkts @ 10.53 WARRANDYTE
	Batting	PAAWAN DAVE

		266 runs @ 44.33 TEMPLETON
E Grade	Bowling	DYLAN SMITH 19 wkts @ 16.42 KILSYTH
	Batting	MICHAEL WALKER 280 runs @ 140.00 SEVILLE
Modified 1	Bowling	DAMIEN OSBORN 17 wkts @ 21.53 WONGA PARK
	Batting	AJEESH JOSEPH 387 runs @ 77.40 SCORESBY
Modified 2	Bowling	DAMON DELANEY 26 wkts @ 6.69 EAST RINGWOOD
	Batting	DREW EL MOUSSALLI 449 runs @ 74.83 WARRANDYTE
Modified 3	Bowling	PATRICK McALARY 15 wkts @ 10.20 WARRANDYTE
	Batting	JOSH WYLES 423 runs @ 52.88 LILYDALE
Modified 4	Bowling	AIDAN WILLIAMS 20 wkts @ 12.20 WONGA PARK
	Batting	DARREN HAWLEY 518 RUNS @86.33 WONGA PARK
Modified 5	Bowling	JOHN CUNNINGHAM 24 wkts @ 4.33 SCORESBY
	Batting	BRAD NIEMANN 430 RUNS @143.33 EAST RINGWOOD
Modified 6	Bowling	HUGO HAY 16 wkts @ 15.50 WARRANDYTE
	Batting	STEVE DARMODY 384 runs @ 96.00 HEATHWOOD

## PREMIERSHIPS WON from 1966/67 - 2020/2021

Wonga Park	47	(4)	Warranwood	20*	(8)
Mooroolbark	35	(11)	Wantirna	18	(6)
Ainslie Park	36	(4)	Chirnside Park	16	(5)
Wantirna South	35	(6)	South Warrandyte	15	(5)
East Ringwood	33	(7)	South Croydon	13	(5)
North Ringwood	31	(7)	Mt Evelyn	13	(3)
St Andrews	29	(6)	Boronia	11	(0)
Croydon Ranges	27*	(6)	Scoresby	12	(2)
Templeton	27	(5)	Eastfield	10	(3)
Warrandyte	27	(4)	Heathwood	5*	(1)
Montrose	26	(5)	Healesville	1	(0)
Croydon North	25	(9)	Hoddles Creek	1	(1)
Kilsyth	25	(1)	Yarra Glen	1	(1)
Lilydale	24	(5)	Poweltown	1	(0)
Norwood	24	(4)	Yarra Junctions	1	(0)
Bayswater Park	22	(2)	Seville	0	(0)

Figures in brackets are premierships won by first eleven teams.

- Croydon Ranges totals include premierships won by Croydon United and Croydon Hockeyers.
- Warranwood totals include premierships won by South Ringwood and Parkwood.
- Scoresby totals include premierships won by Scoresby Ferndale.
- Heathwood totals include premierships won by Heathmont Baptists

# Vale Don Smith

Don first played competitive cricket at the age of 14 in the senior competition in his hometown of Wangaratta.

After a period of not playing cricket, Don joined St. Andrews Cricket Club and it was a 'home' for Don for many years with Don providing significant service to the club, both on and off the playing field. Don joined the club when it was formed in the 1964/65 season and, off the field, has filled many roles including being Treasurer from 1975/76 to 1982/83 and President from 1985/86 to 1988/89. On the field, Don had what can only be described as an imposing playing record. He played 296 games for St. Andrews across most grades and made 5,865 runs and took 785 wickets - a record he can be justly proud of.

Amongst his personal milestones, Don won 5 First Eleven batting and 4 bowling awards at club level and other averages in the lower grades. Association batting and bowling awards, - B Grade (1965/66) and Chandler Shield (1971/72) batting awards and 'D' grade (1964/65), Chandler Shield (1976/77), 'E' grade (1988/89) and Chandler 4 (1991/92) bowling averages enhance a career that included RDCA representative matches as both a player and umpire. Don's playing career was spread over a lengthy period - from 1964/65 to retirement after the 1993/94 season.

For many years Don played alongside his close friend John Macmillan, who was also a club and RDCA Life Member (John passed away peacefully in April 2021, a few weeks after Don's passing). Don was acknowledged for his dedicated service to St. Andrews Cricket Club with Life Membership in 1977/78. The club has further acknowledged Don by naming its Club Championship Award after him.

Don's service to cricket, like most of our RDCA Life Members, went beyond club loyalties. He had been involved as one of the original organisers of the RDCA Veterans Competition in the late 1980s and served for many years on the RDCA Umpires Association where he held the positions of President and Vice President. A long umpiring career followed on immediately from his playing days and Don was seen each Saturday for many years 'doing the rounds' as he kept an eye on the umpiring fraternity, particularly the newer members. Service on the Executive spanned many years and included the important Social Secretary role.

Don's contribution to the Association was formally acknowledged in 1986/87 when he was appropriately awarded Life Membership - a fine reward for service over many years.

Life Membership of the RDCA Umpires Association followed in 2011/12 and Don has a senior competition grade named in his honour.

In March 2021 Don was an inaugural inductee into the RDCA Hall of Fame, an honour he was aware of and was presented with, shortly before he passed away later that month.

The following words about Don were included in the RDCA Centenary and Hall of Fame program for the dinner held on 26<sup>th</sup> March 2021.

"Don was an inaugural member of St. Andrews C.C. in 1964-65 and has enjoyed a long playing, administrative and umpiring involvement at club and Association level. A successful playing career of 30 years led to an involvement in the establishment of the Veterans competition as well as a lengthy umpiring career that included being President of the Umpire's Association. Don has a senior Association grade competition named after him and is an Association, Umpire's Association and club Life Member. He has the Club Championship Award carrying his name at St. Andrews."

# Vale Phil Mcallum

Phil McCallum was born in Hamilton, Victoria and was educated to Matriculation (year 12) level at Hamilton High School. He later enlisted in the Air Force for war service as a signals/ teleprinter operator in New Guinea and Borneo.

Phil was involved in many organisations for many years as a dedicated volunteer and contributor to community activities and in 1993, he was awarded the prestigious Medal of the Order of Australia (OAM) in recognition of his services to the Community.

Sport always played a part in Phil's activities. His cricket career began at Camberwell Methodists C.C. before he moved to East Ringwood United Churches C.C. This club merged with Croydon West C.C. with the new club known as Ainslie Park Cricket Club. Phil was the Foundation President of the new club and he 'plied his trade' as an opening batsman and wicket-keeper whilst he guided the club in consolidating its position in the Association.

Phil found time to become involved with the Association's Executive where he served for many years. The 1983/84 Annual Report mentions that he was retiring from the Executive after 16 years of service. During that period, Phil variously served as Chairman of the Pinks Reserve Turf Wicket Committee, Manager of the Kilsyth Indoor Cricket Centre, Tribunal member, Records and Results Secretary and as the delegate for 4 years to the Cricket Union of Victoria (CUOV). Such was his impact there Phil served as Chairman of the CUOV Executive for 3 years. Phil McCallum was awarded Life Membership of the Association in 1976/77 and as further recognition of his service to the Association the Senior Club Championship Trophy is named the "Phil McCallum Club Championship Award".

Phil was also the author of the book "from Paddocks to Parks", which is "A History of the Development of Cricket in the Lilydale, Croydon, Ringwood and Ferntree Gully Districts and of the Ringwood and District Cricket Association". This magnificent publication has provided significant information in compiling these Life Member 'summaries' and can be found on the RDCA website.

# Vale John Macmillan

John was a solicitor who was born in Melbourne. After being a senior partner in a large legal firm he then practiced law on a consultancy basis and acted as the Association's Legal Advisor for many years.

John played cricket for Canterbury Presbyterians for 16 years playing representative cricket at the Under 21 level. He moved to St. Andrews Cricket Club in the 1964/65 season where he became a Foundation Member of the club following a name change from Heathmont Presbyterians. He was the first Captain/Coach of the new club and served in that capacity from 1964/65 to 1967/68. In that time the club won premierships in B grade in 1965/66 and then A Grade in 1966/67 and these achievements in successive seasons led the club into the Chandler Shield grade.

At St. Andrews, John played 160 games across all Grades during the period from 1964/65 to 1980/81. He accumulated 2,664 runs at an average of 20.34 and took 90 wickets at an average of 18.01. He was the First Eleven Captain for 4 years, President of the club for 3 years from 1970/71 to 1972/73 and was awarded the club's second Life Membership accolade in 1971/72. In a playing career of 32 years, John played for 20 years in the top grade and played in five senior Premiership teams - three in the RDCA and two in the Eastern Suburban Churches competition. He captained 2 of these premiership teams.

John offered distinguished service to the Association for many years, dating from the early 1970s when the then Association President, Bill Dean, asked him to revise the Association's Constitution and Rules. John spent over 15 years on the Association Executive and served as a Vice President in 1975/76 and 1976/77. After that service, he acted for over 15 years (until 2006/07) as Chairman of the Association's Tribunal / Investigation Committee and then took on the role of Chairman of the Appeals Tribunal.

John was awarded Life Membership of the Association in 2000/01, an award richly deserved in recognising his contribution to the competition. Throughout his association with St. Andrews and the competition, John remained firm friends with Don Smith, a teammate and fellow St. Andrews and RDCA Life Member. John maintained a strong interest in both St. Andrews Cricket Club and the Association.

Since the 2010/11 season, John has had a senior competition grade named in his honour.

John sadly passed away in April 2021.



# 2020/2021 Sponsors

# Please support our sponsors SELT COLLEGE VIC. PRINTING COLLEGE VIC